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DIRECTORS' STRATEGIC REPORT AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

The Directors of Al United Bank (UK) PLC {the 'Bank’) are pleased in submitting the strategic report for
the year ended 31 December 2013

The Bank 1s an authonsed institution under the United Kingdom Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 and carnes on an intemational commereral, pnivate and investment banking business

The principal nsks faced by the Bank and details of denvatives and financial instruments held are set out
In note 26

The Bank enjoyed a successful year of performance The Bank continued to focus on its core lending
businesses of residential mortgages, commercial property, margin lending and commercial finance and
in providing a global fund management service to institutional and private chents

The activities of the Bank in the forthcoming penod will continue to be those currently undertaken

The Bank achieved net interest income of $46 7 million, an 11% decrease on the 2012 level of $52 6
milion The net mierest margin was 1 3% (2012 16%) This was largely due to a general repositicning
of the Bank's matunty profile which was camed out in the second half of 2012

Total other operating income increased by 12 2% to $26 7 milion Thus can be attnbuted to the share of
profits receivable by the Bank from a joint venture property vehicle

Operating expenses increased to $29 6 milion (2012 $27 2 million) an increase of 8 8% However the
cost iIncome ratio was held at a respectable 40 3% (2012 35 6%)

Al the year end, total assets stood at $4 2 billion (2012 $3 4 bilion) with loans to customers of $1 6
bilion, showing a 0 7% decrease compared to 2012 Total deposits (Including repurchase agreements)
amounted to $3 8 tullion, a 22 8% increase on 2012

The retum on average equity was 14 8% (2012 13 5%) and the retumn on average assels was 1 1%
(2012 10%} As at 31 December 2013 the Bank held surplus capital of $46 3 milion over its Indnidual
Capital Guidance 1ssued by the PRA and its Capital Planning Buffer

By Order of the board
L N

Jane Hamilton
Company Secretary

25 AArkcH 2014




DIRECTORS' REPCRT AHLI UNITED BANK (UK} PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

The Directors of Ahli United Bank (UK) PLC (the 'Bank’) are pleased in submitting the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013

Resuits and dividends
The profit after tax of the Bank and its subsidianes for the year amounted to $41,216,000
(2012 Restated $36,376,000) i

A final dvidend for 2012 of $20,000,000 (10 cents per share) was paid dunng the year Afinal dvidend of
$30,000,000 (15 cents per share) i1s proposed for 2013

Going Concern
The Directors confirm the Bank has adequate resources to continue In business for the foreseeable future
For this reason, the Bank continues to adopt the going concern basts for prepanng financial statements

Pillar il disclosures

As part of its implementation of the Banking Consoldation Directive and the Capital Adequacy Directive, the

Prudentral Regulatory Authonty requires the Bank to make certain disclosures to the market, often descnbed as

Pillar Ill disclosures Some of the required disclosures are included within note 26 to the Financial Statements

However where additonal disclosures are required these have either been included in an appendix to the Financial :
Statements or cross referenced within the appendix to other notes within the Financial Statements

The information included in the appendix has not been audited

Guernsey Branch
The Bank has a branch based in Guernsey and the total customers deposits held were $299,145,000 (2012
$199,712,000) as at 31 December 2013

Directors
The names of the Directors who served during 2013 are those listed on page 2

In accordance wrth the Articles of Association, all of the Directors retire at every third Annual General Meeting and,
being elgible, offer themselves for re-electon

Auditors
The Directors have taken all the steps they ocught to have taken to make themselves aware of any nformation

needed by the Bank’s auditors for the purposes of their audit and to estabhish that the auditors are aware of that
information  The Directors are not aware of any relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware

A resolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as the auditors will be proposed at the next Annual General Meeting
By Order of the board
: EF Iy

Jane Hamilton
Company Secretary

AS M 2014




STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES AHL}I UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
IN RELATION TC THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report, Strategic Report and the Group financial statements
In accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and regutations Company law requires the directors to prepare
Group financial statements for each financial year Under that law, the directors are required to prepare Group financial
statements under IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Union

Under Company Law the Directors must not approve the Group financtal statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that penod In
preparing the Group financial statements the directors are required to

present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group,

select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Pohcies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors and then apply them consistently,

present information, including accounting policies, In @ manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

make judgements that are reasonable,

provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs as adopted by the
European Umion 1s insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the Group's financial position and financial performance, and

state whether the Group financial statements have been prepared i accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficientto show and explain the
Group's transacticns and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable
them to ensure that the Group financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularnities




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013
n

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC

We have audited the Group and Bank financial statements (the "financial statements”) of Ahli United Bank (UK) PLC for the year
ended 31 December 2013 which comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group and Bank Balance Sheet, the Group and
Bank Statement of Cash Flows, the Group and Bank Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 31 The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in thew preparation 13 applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion and, as regards the Bank company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made sclely to the Bank's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiity to anyone other than the Bank and the Bank's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opmiens we have formed

Respective responsibibties of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financral statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Cur responsibility 1s to audit and
express an opinion on the financia! statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurange that the financial statements ara free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and the Bank's crcumstances and have been
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of signfficant accounting estmates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the financial statements in addition, we read all the financial and nen-financial information in the
Financial Statements to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information
that 15 apparently materialty incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal musstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
mplications for our report

Opimon on financial statements
In our opinian

»  the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's and of the Bank's affairs as at 31 December
2013 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

»  the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union,

> the Bank financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union
and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Compantes Act 2006, and

»  the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given 1n the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 20086 requires us to report to you if, in
aur gpinign

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Bank, or returns adequate for our aud|lt have not been recewved
from branches not visited by us, or

»  the Bank company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
» centain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

»  we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Evuadt tL"(ou«og we

Andrew Davison {(Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLLP, Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

25 Mowvet. 20t e




GROUP INCOME STATEMENT AHL! UNITED BANK {UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER NOTES 2013 2012
$000 $000
Restated

lnterest income
Interest income and similar income ansing from non-trading Investments 22,645 21,293
Other interest and similar income 78,021 87,500
100,666 108,793
Interest expense {53,939} {56,181)
Net interest income 3 48,727 52612
Fee and commussion income 17,559 17,844
Fee and commission expense (722) (761)
Net fee and commission income 16,837 17,083
Trading income - net 26 666 996
Other operating Income 4 6,070 5758
Share of profit after tax from & joint venture 13 3,129 -
Totai trading and other aperating income 9,865 6 754
Total operating income before impairment charges 73,429 76,449
Release / {Provisions) for losses on loans and advances, impaiment of non-trading investments 11 4,581 {116)

and cother assets - net

Net operating income 78,010 76,333
QOperating Expenses [ {20,577) (27 197)
Profit before tax 6 43,433 48,142
Income tax expense 7 {1,217) {12,766)
Profit for the year 23 41,216 36 376

Other comprehensive income

Net Gain on changes In fair value of available-for-sale investments 5,818 18,072
Actuanal gains / {losses) relating to retirement benefit obligabons £,595 {10,981)
Total comprehensive iIncome 51,629 43,467
Attnbutable to Equity holders of the Group ] I 51,629 | | 43,467

All amounts relate to conbinuing activities  The 2012 comparatives were restated in accardance wath LAS19 (Revised 2011} Employee Benefits

The notes on pages 13 to 42 are an integral part of these audited financial statements
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK} PLC

REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

AT 31 DECEMBER NOTES 2013 2012
$000 $000

Assets Restated
Cash and balances with central banks 5415 2,133
Loans and advances to banks 8 1,464,222 796,928
Reverse repurchase agreements 9 15,000 231,132
Denvative financial instruments 26 5,832 11,295
lLoans and advances to customers. 10 1,597,222 1,609,390
Non-trading Investments 12 1,035,558 752,083
Investments in a joint venture 13 3,210 81
Froperty, plant and equipment 15 4,693 5071
Deferred tax asset 16 1910 5631
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 17 18,781 20,317
Total assets 4,151,944 3 434,081
Liabitbes

Deposits from banks 18 13,235 122 903
Repurchase agreements 9 15,204 289 601
Customer deposis 19 3,722,845 2 642,613
Denvative financial instruments 26 44,534 49,134
Current tax lability 16 9,560 6835
Accruals, deferred ingome and other halblities 20 28,302 23,969
Retirement benefit scheme 29 8,583 22025
Subordinated babilbies 21 12,613 17,344
Total habiltes 3,854,676 3174,424
ssued share capstal 22 200,080 200 080
Share premium 22 128 128
Other reserves 23 17075 7257
Retained eamings 23 79,985 52172
Equity shareholders' funds 297,268 259 637
Total iabilibes and equity 4151944 3,434,081
Memorandum items

Contingent tabilities 24 13,503 10177
Commitments 25 191,981 119 765
The notes on pages 13 to 42 are an integral part of these audited financial statements

The 2012 comparatives were restated in accordance with LAS19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits

Fahad AHRajaan /7 ._,-——-’Jﬁ;es Forster (

Chauman %’/ e / / Chief Executive Officer Orega

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 'l-{ March 2014




BANK BALANCE SHEET

AHLI UNITED BANK {UK) PLC

REFPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

AT 31 DECEMBER NOTES 2013 2012
_$000 $000
Assels Restated
Cash and balances with central banks 5415 2133
Loans and advances to banks 8 1,464,222 796 928
Reverse repurchase agreements 49 15,000 231132
Denvative financial instruments 26 5832 112958
Loans and advances to customers. 10 1,597,323 1,609 380
Non-trading investments 12 1,035,558 752,083
Investments 1n group undertakings 14 198 396
|Investments 1n a joint venture 13 81 81
Property plant and equipment 15 4,693 507
Deferred tax asset 16 1,910 5631
Prepayments accrued income and other assets 17 18,781 20317
Total assets 4,143,013 3434 457
Liabthiies
Depos:its from banks 18 13,354 122,903
Repurchase agreements 9 15,204 289 601
Customer deposits 19 3,722,645 2643009
Dervative financial ingtruments 26 44,534 49 134
Current tax hability 16 9,560 6,835
Accruals deferred income and other habilities 20 28,237 23,969
Retirement benefit scheme 29 8,583 22025
Subordinated labiities 21 12,613 17 344
Total habslives 3,854,730 3174 820
Issued share capital 22 200 080 200 080
Share premum 22 128 128
Cther reserves 23 17,075 7,257
Relained earnings. 23 77,000 52 172
Equrty shareholders funds 294,233 258,637
Total habilities and equity 4,149,013 3,434 457

The notes on pages 13 to 42 are an integral part of these audited finanaal statements

The 2012 comparatives were restated in accordance with IAS19 (Revised 2011) Employea Benefits

\
Fanhad Al-Ragaan Lmu——James Forster (—
Chaiman Z%{_{v M M Cheef Executive Officer ot

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1Issue on 1.{ March 2014




GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AHLI UNITED BANK {tJK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 2012
5000 300
Cash flows from cperating activities Restated
Profit before tax 48,433 40142
Adusiments for
Depreciation 976 1031
Amorizabhon and revaluation of non-irading investments and pension fund 28,253 {17 411)
Loss / (Profit) on sale of non-trading investments T (225}
Provision release for losses on loans and advances 4,780} {82}
Provision charga for impairment of investments 1 group undertakings 199 198
Sharg of nat prafit from joint venture {3,129) -
Oparating cash flows before changes in operating assets and habiliies 69,959 32653
Changes in
Deposits with ¢entral bank (823) {1097}
Reverse repurchase agreemants 216,132 {231 132)
Loans and advances to customers 16,847 158 064
\rieTest receivable 42) (3 022)
Préepayments accrued mcoma and other assets (including dervative financial instrurnents) 3,547 (B)
Deposits from banks {109,887) 72219
Repurchase agreements {274,397) 289 601
Customer deposits 1,080,032 (241 187}
Interast payable 121 8
Accruals defamed ncome and other labilties (inclucing denvative financial Instruments) {3.852) 47 995
Treasury brllg 164,812 -
Cash from cperations 1,162,469 123 496
Net tax paid (7,253) {10 025)
Net cash from operating activities 1,155216 113471
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of nondraging nvestments {314,502) {331 381)
Proceeds from sale and matunty of non-trading wvestmants 29,310 61444
investment in property plant and equipment (598) (842}
Net cash used 0 investing activities (285 790) (270 779)
Cash flows from financing activities
Subordinated liabites repaid {4.731) (150,000)
Drvidend paid {20,000} {20 000),
Net cash used in financing actmilies {24 T3} {170,000)
Faraign currency translation adjustments {10,130} (7.188)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 834,565 {334,496)
Cash and cash squivalents at 1 January 797,964 1132460
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,632,529 7597 964
Cash and cash equivalents compnse
Cash and balances with central banks (excluding mandatory reserves) 3495 1036
Loans and Advances to Banks - with an enginal matunty of three months or less 1,464,222 795 928
Treasury bills - with an onginal matunty of three manths or less 164,812 -
1,832,529 797 964
Included withun Cash and batances with central banks
Cash and balances with central banks( excluding mandatory reserve deposits) 3,495 1,036
Mandatory reserve dep with Bank of England 4,920 1097
5415 2133

Mandatory reserves are not available Tor use n day-to-day ogerations

Tha notes on pages 13 to 42 are an integral part of these audited financeal statements

The 2012 comparatives were restated n accordance with IAS19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits




BANK STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK} PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 2012
$000 $000
Cash flows from operating activites Restated
Profit befeore tax 45,304 45 142
Adjustments for
Depreciation 976 1031
Ameritzabion and revaluatien of non-rading nvestments and pension fund 28,253 (17 411)
Loss / {Profit) on sale of non-trading Investments 7 (225)
Frovision release for lesses on loans and advances {4,780} 82)
Provision charge for impaiment of investments in group undertakings 199 188
Operating cash flows before changes in pperating assets and liablites 69,959 32 653
Changes In
Deposits with central bank (823} {1087)
Reverse repurchase agreements 216,132 {231 132)
Loans and advances to customers 16,847 158 064
Interest recervable (42) {3622)
Prepayments accrued income and other assets {including derivabve financial instruments) 3,690 (6)
Deposits from banks (109,629) 72219
Repurchase agreements {274,397) 289 601
Customer deposits 1,079,636 {241 449)
Interest payable 121 8
Accrugls, deferred income and other iiabilites {including denvatve financial instruments) (3,837) 47 985
Treasury bils 164,812 -
Cash frorm operations 1,162,469 123234
Net tax paid (7.,253) {10 025)
Net cash fram operating acivities 1,155,216 113 209
Cash flows from investing activites
Purchase of non-trading mvestrments {314,502) (331 381)
Proceeds from sale and matunty of non-trading investments 29,310 61444
Investment in property plant and equipment {598) (842)
Proceeds frem investments 262
Net cash used in investing activities {285,790) {270 517}
Cash flows from financing activities
Subordinated hatilies repaid {4.731) {150 000)
Dividend pad {20,000} (20 000}
Net cash used in financing activities {24,731} (170 000}
Foreign currency transtation adjustments {10,130} (7 188}
Net increase / [decrease) n ¢cash and cash equivalents 834,565 {334 496)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 797,964 1,132 460
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 1,632,529 797 964
Cash and cash equrvalents compnse
Cash and balances with central banks (excluding mandalory reserves} 3495 1,036
Loans and advances o banks - with an ongina! matunty of three months or less 1,464,222 796 928
Treasury bills - with an onginal matunty of three months or less 164,812 -
1,632,529 797 964
Included within Cash and balances with central banks
Cash and balances with central banks{ excluding mandatory reserve deposits) 3,495 1,036
Mandaiory reserve deposiis with Bank of England 1,920 1097
5,415 2133

Mandatory reserves are not availatle for use in day-io-day operations

The notes on pages 13 1o 42 are an integral par of these audited financial statements

The 2012 comparatives were restated in accordance with IAS18 {Revised 2011) Employee Benefits
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GROUP AND BANK STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AHLEUNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

GROUP SHARE SHARE OTHER RETAINED
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS TOTAL
$000 5000 $000 $000 $000
Changes In equity 2013
At 1 January 2013 200 080 128 7257 52172 259,637
Profit for the year - - - 41218 41,216
Available-for-sale investments valuation gains - - 9318 - 2818
Actuanal gans (JAS19 Revised) - - - 6 595 6,595
Total comprehensive ncome - - 9818 47 B11 57,629
Dwdend pad - - - (20 000} {20,000)
Currency translation differences - - - 2 2
At 31 December 2013 200,080 128 17,075 79985 297,268
GROUP SHARE SHARE OTHER RETAINED
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS TOTAL
$000 $000 $060 3000 $000
(hanges n equity 2072 - Restated
At 1 January 2012 200 080 128 {10 815) 71388 260,781
Penswn fund Impact of adopling IAS19 {Revised 2011} Employee benefits - - {24 615) {24 615)
At 1 January 2012 - restated 200 080 128 (10 815) 46 773 236,166
[Proft for the year - - - 36,376 36,376
Available-for-sale nvestments valuation gains - - 18072 - 18,072
Actuanal gains {IAS19 Revised) - - - (10 981) {10,981)
Total comprehensive income - - 18072 25 395 43,467
Dwidend pad - - - {20 000} (20,000)
Currency franslaton differences - - - 4 4
At 31 December 2012 200 080 128 7257 52172 259,637
BANK SHARE SHARE OTHER RETAINED
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS TOTAL
$000 $000 5000 $000 $000
Changes in eguity 2013
At 1 January 2013 200 DBO 128 7 257 52 172 259,637
Profit for the year - - a3 23 38,231
Avalable-for-sale investments vatuation gans - - 9818 - 9,818
Actuanal gaing {IAS19 Revised) - - - 6 595 6,595
Total comprehensive income - - g 816 44 826 54,644
Owidend paid - - (20 000) (20,000)
Currency trans!ation differences - - 2 2
At 31 December 2013 200 080 128 17 075 77 000 294,283
BANK SHARE SHARE OTHER RETAINED
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS TOTAL
$000 $000 3000 $000 $000
Changes in equity 2012 - Restated
At 1 January 2012 200 080 128 (10 815) 71388 260,781
Pansion fund Impact of adopting IAS19 (Revised 2011) Employes benefits - - {24 615) {24,615)
At 1 Jaouary 2012 - restated 200 080 128 (10 815) 46 773 236,166
Profit for the year - - 36 378 36,376
‘Available-for-sale nvestments valuation gains - - 18012 - 18,072
Actuarial gains {|AS 19 Revised) - - (10 981) (10,981)
Total comprehensive income - - 18672 25 385 43,467
Dividend pad - - {20 000) {20,000)
Currency translaton dffarences - - 4 4
A1 31 December 2012 200 080 128 7257 52 172 259,637

The notes on pages 13 to 42 are an integral part of these audited financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AHLY UNITED BANK (UK) PLC

at 31 Decermber 2013 REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11 Basls of consolldation

The consolidated financial statements comprsa the financial sStatements of the Bank and 5 subsidaries {together known a3 tfhe Graup)
as at and for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 The financial statements of matenal subsidlares are prepared for the same
reporing  year g3 the Bank using consistent accountng policies Adjustments Bre mads 9 bnag o bne any dissmdar accountng  policies
that may exist Al matenal inwagroup bGalances bansactions ncome and expenses and profits and losses resutting  fom intra-group
trassacihons are eSminated in full on consalidation

Subsid are fully congol ftrom the date on which control is transferred to the Group Control 15 achieved where the Bank has the power to
govemn the financlal and operatng pollcies of an entty 50 as 1o cblain benefits from s actvibes The results of subsidlanes acquired or cisposed
of dunng the year aré incuded in the consolidated income statement from the date of acquisibon or up to the date of disposal as appropriate
No incoma statemant s presented for the Bank as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

The principal subsldiaries are set cutin nete 14

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost bass as modfied for the rameasuremant at far value of trading and
avafable-for-sale financial assets and all derdvatves (n addibon &s more fully discussed below in notes 13 (g) and (h) assets that are far value hedged
are adusted to the extent of the far value of the risk bemy hedged The i financial are pr d in US Dollars which is the
Groups functonal currency and =l values are rounded 1o the nearest thousand (US Doflar thousand) excepl where otherwse indicated
The US Dolfar / Sterling forexgn exchangs rate applicable as at the reportng date was 1 64855

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared In accordance with International Fiancal Repering  Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by the ELl and interpreiations issued by the Intermavonal Finangil Reporting
Interpretatons Committes of the IASB and in accordance with the speclal provisions of Part iV [Section 6 Part 2) of the Companies Act 2006 relating to baniing
companies

New Standards snd Interpretations issued but not yet effective
The following new Standards and amendments have been issued by the LASB tut gre not yet mandatory for the year ended 31 Decermber 2013

- 1AS 39 Novation of Dertvatves and cantnuation of Hedge accountng  Amendments to LAS39 effective for annual penods commencing 1 January 2014

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Hedge accounting the mandatory effectve data s not vet specified

- Investment Entites + {Amendments to IFRS 10 IFRS 12 and (AS 27) effective for annual periads commencing 1 January 2014

- 1AS 32 Offsetting Financlal Assets and Financial Liabiles  Amendments to [AS 32 effective for annual periods commencing 1 January 2014

The management s considenng the implications of these standards and emandments thewr impact on tha Group s financial pasiton and results and the frrng of their
adoption by the Group

New Standards and Interpratations Issued and are effective
(1) The Group has adapted the following new and amended Internatonal Accounng Standards / International Financial Reportng Standards as of January2013

145 19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits  effectve for annwal penods commencing 1 January 2013
The Group adopled the amended Standard 1AS 19 Employee Benefits issued by the 14SB in 2011 mandatonly applicable with effect from 1 January 2013
The amended Standard requires

immediate recogniton of actuanal gains and ksses relating to ‘Defined Pension Benefit scheme through equily thus removing the earier available optons of deferred
recognition of such mavements using  the corrdor’ approach or immediate recogniton through profit and loss

- streamlne the presentaton of changes in assets and habillties edsing from defined banefits pfans cluding requiring remeasurements to be presentad
In other comprehensive ncome {OCIL

enhance the disclasure reguirements for defined benefit plans  providing detalfed information about the charactensucs of defined benefit plans and the risks that
enties are expesed to through participation in those plans

The change i accounting poficy resulting from the application of IAS 19 Employee Benefits (2011) has been effacted in accordance with IAS 8 requinng
the re-statement to ba reflectec from the eartiest period presented Accordingly the impact of this change Is reflected In Note 29

{n) The Group has adopted the following new and amended Intemational Accountng Standards / Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as of  January 2013
cid nt have any smpact on the financial postbon or performance of the Group

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financal Stat=ments
IFRS 11 Jont Arangements
A5 28 Ir in A and Jomnt

{10} The Group has adepted the fallewing new and amended Intemnatonal Accounting Standards / Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as of 1 January 2013 end
necessary addilonal disclosures arising from the adeption of these Standards have been made In the consalidated financial statements

|AS 1 Financial Staternents Presentation
IFRS 12 Drsclosure of interest in Cther Entyes
IFRS 13 Far value Measurement
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12 Significant acesunting judgemaents and estimates

The preparation of the consclidated financial statements requires mensgement to make Judgements and estimates that affect the repoed amounts
of income expenses financial assets lablibes the accompanying disciosures and disclosure of conungent liabiites Uncertanty about these
assumptions and estmates could result In outcomes that require a material adjustment to the camyng amount of assets or hiabilites affected In fture periods

Judgaments

Judgements are made in  tha |zble-for-gal held-for-rading  8nd  hedd to-matunty  investments based on manegements
nenton at the acquisiton of the financla) asset Judgements ere also made in the determination of the objective avidence that a financial assel Is impared
Estimates

Pension plan

Estmates and assumphons #re used In determining the Groups penson habilibes The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post
empkyment medical benefitt and the present value of pension obligatons are determined using actuanal valugtions An actuanal valugion involves
making varous assumpbons that may differ from actual developments in the future These inchide the determinabon of the discount rate future salary
Increases mortality rates and future pension increases

Impairment losses on loans and advances, nen-trading investrents and other assets

Esbrmales are made regarding the amewnt and bming of future cash flows when g the level of pravi; required for norrperformung bans portiohos of
performing loans wiih sumelar risk characterisucs whera the rsk of default has increased as wed as for provisions for nor-trading investments and
oiher assets These are more fully described n note 1 3 {g) and note 11

Fair value of financial instrumemnts

Estirnates are also made in determning the faw values of financial assets and denvatives that are not quoted in an active market. Such estmates are necsssarily

based an assumphons about several factors invohing varying degrees of uncertainty and actual resufts may differ resufing i future changes n such provisons

The methodology and assumptions used for estmabng future cash flows are reviswed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss expenence

13 Summary of significant accounting peticles
The principal accounting palicies applied in the preparation of thesa 1 and Bank £ al are set out below These policies have baen
consistently appked to all the years presented

{a) Investments in assoclates and Joint venture

Assgciate companies are companiss In which the Group exertises signrficant influence but does not control  Signfficant influence 13 the power o
participate in the financial end operating policy decisions of the investee but 13 not conrol or jont control over thase polcies The Group classifies an
wivesument as jont venture™ when it 18 a party to a jont arrangement whereby the partes that have joint control of the arangement have nghts @ the net assets
of the joint venture Investrients In assoclate companies and jont vantures are accounted for using the eguity methad

{b) Foreign currency translation

{1) Transactions and balances

Transactions n foregn cumencies are inwally recorted in the functional cumency at the rate of exchange prevaling on the date of the tansacton
Monetary sssets and habiites cenomnaied In foreygn cumencies are translated nto the functonal cumency at the rate of exchange niing at the
balance shest date Any resultng exchange differences are included wn “wading income - net’ in the consolidated income  statement,
Non-monetary assets and Fabifites tha! are measured at historical cost i a foreign curency are translated using the exchange rates ag ot the dates
of the nmal tr '8 Non-n Y iable-for sals Ir s measured at fair value N a foreign cumency are translated using the
exchangs rates at the date the far value i3 determined and the differences are included n other comprehensive income as part of tha far value
adusiment of the respective items unless these items are pant of trading secunties as explamed i note 13 {c) (i) or are part of an effective
hedging strategy In which case 1t is recorded in the idated income 1t

{n) Group companies

Agsets and  labil of foregn subsid whese functoral cumency 15 not US Dollars are translated into US Dollars at the rates of exchange
preveing et e balance shest dats Income and expense Wems are banslaled et exchenge rates prevaling st each month end as an approximetion
for the rate at the date of the ransacton

(<) Financial instruments

The classification of financial instuments at intal recogniton depends on the purpose for whih the financial instuments were acgured and their
characteristics All financlal nsfruments are ntially recognised at the far value of consideraton gven mcuding acqusiton costs associated with
the nvestment except In the case of tradng securities the acquisiton costs of which are expensed FPremiums and discounts ara amoised on a
systemnatic basis to maturty using the effective interest method and taken to interest income or interest axpense as appropriata

{1) Date of recognition

All "regular way" purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlernent date ie the date that the Group receives o defivers the
assel Regular way purchases or sales are purcthases or sales of financial assets that require delvery of assets within the tme frame generaly
estatlished by regutation or conventon in the market place

The Group accounts for any changes in the far valus of the msset o be recerved durng the penod betwsen the trade date and the setfement date
n the same way as it accounts for the acqured asset The change w far value i recognised in the consolidated wcome statemenl for assets
classfied a5 “treding secunies” and It I5 recogmised n equty for assets classfied as asvailable-for sale The change In value s not recogniaed for
assets camied at cost or amorised cost
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{i)) Treasury bills and deposits with central banks
Treasury bds and deposts with central banks are intafly recogrused at cost Premums and discounts are amortsed on a systematic basks
to thesr matunty

(m) Trading securities

A financial asset '$ classfied as held for tradng f it Is acqured or ncumed principally for the purpose of generatng profit from short term
fiuctuatons in price Trading securites are loally cecegnised at cost, being the far value of the consideraton gqiven and are subsequenty
measured al far value Resuttant unrealisec gans an¢ losses arising from changes in far value are in the consol d income statement
under rading income net” while dvidend income 15 recorded in “dividend income” when the right of the payment has been estabhshed

{iv} Held-to-matunty

Nonrtrading Investments with fxed or déterminable payments fixed matunbes and which the Group has the intenton and abdity to hod @l matunty
are classified as heid to-matunty After iniial recogmibon thess are subsequenty measured at amorised cost wsing the effective interest rate
method less allowance for impaiment The losses ansing from impairment of such investments are racognised In the consoldated statement of income

{v) Depostts with banks and cther financial Insttutions and loans and advances

Ceposits with bank and other financial insttutions and Loans and advances ars finanmal assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
matuntes that are not quated In an active market After intial recogniton these are subsequently meesured at amorbsed cost using the effective
interest rate method adpsted for effectve fair value heﬁges less any amcunts wrilten off and provision for inpairment. The losses ansing from
imparment of these assets are recognised in the income N 0 “prowsion for losses on koans and advances non-trading
wvestments and other assets net” and in an imparment alowance account in the consolidated balance sheet Amorised cost o caloutated by
taking inte account any discount or premum on acquisbon and fees that are an integral part of the effectrve interest rate The amortisation s
Inchuded in Tinterest income 1IN the consolidated income statemant

{w1) Available-for sale
Nun-tradmg nvestments that are not classified 2s held to-maturity held for trading or loans and advances are classified as avalable-for sale After initiat

G for-sale inv arar i at far value
Unless unrealsed gans and ksses on remeasurement io far value are pant of an efl hred ] h they are reported as a separate
component of agquity untl the investhent is sold setled or otherwise disposed of or the mves:mem Ds detsrmined to he wmpaired at which Lme
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity 5 included in the conscl neoma for the penod

Any gan of loss adsing from a change in far value of avalablefor sale investments which are parl of an effeciive hedging relasenshp s
recogrised directly in the conschidated income statament to the extent of the changes in fair valus being hedged

{vil) Denvabves

Changes in far values of the cervatives heid for tradng are mchuided In the consolidated Iincome undgr Ttrading ncome-net”
D bedded in other £ lal are fireated as separate derivatves and recorded at far value, when ther economic
charactenstics and nsks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract 5 not camed a5 hed for trading
The change in fair value of such embedded derivatives 15 recognsad i the consobdated income statement.

(vi) Reverse repurchase and Repurchase agreements

Reverse repurchase agreements are @ form of lending whereby the Group provides & loan or cash collateral in exchange for tha transfer of collateral
generally i the form of marketable securites subject to an agreement to tansfer the securties back at a fixed price in the future Repurchase
agraements are when the Group abtalns such loans or cash collateral in exchangs for tha collateral

in accountng for reverse repurchase agreements the securiies purchased are Aot Inch on tha bat sheet b the group does nat
acquire the risks and rewards of ownershp Consderabon ped 5 accounted for a3 a loan asset gt amorised cost Swndady for a repurchase
agreement the secunbes sold are retained on the balance sheet as the group retans the nsks and rewards of ownershup Consideraton received
15 accounted for as a financial llabildy at amortsed cost.

(ix) Depesits Syndicated lcans and Subordinated labiies
These financial Fabilites are carned at amertised cost less amounts repald
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{d) Derecogniticn of financia! assets and financial tabilities

A fingncial asset (or where apphieable a part of a fnancial esset or part of a group of simitar financial assats) s derecognised where
the rights to receive cash fiows from the asset have expired
the Group has transferred Hs nghts 1o recave cash fows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows m full without
materal delay to a third party under a pass through amangement or
the Group has transfered its rights fo receive cash flws from the asset and either {i} has transfered substantlalty all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (i) has nether tansfered nor retaned substanually all the nsks and rewards of the asset but has tansfemed control of the asset

Afi | kabilty ts der

ol when the obigation under the iabdity is dscharged canceled o explres

(e) Datarmination of fair value

Tne farr vatue of financial instuments that are quoted in an active market is determined by reference to market bid and offer pnaces respectvely
at the close of business on the balance sheet date

Tha far value of labidibes with a demand featurs |s the amount payzble on demand

The far value of interest bearing financial assets and llabiliies that are not quated in an active market and are not payable on demand is deterriried by a discounted
cash fiow moded using the cumment market intérest rates for financial Instruments with simay terms and risk charactenstics.

For equity imvesiments that ara not quoted in an actve market a reasonable estmate of the far value 15 determined by referencs © the curent
market value of ancther nstrument that 5 substantally ssmdar of & determuned using net present valus techrngues

Investments In funds are statad at net asset values provided by fund managers fess a quudity discount.

The fair value of unguoted derivatives s determined ether by discounted cash flows or ophon-pricing models

(f) Farbearance

The Bank will consider forbearance of similar repayment programmes on @ case by case basis 1o assist cusiomers wha are temporaniy In financial dfficulty and
unable to meet the contractual repayments under thelr onginal agreement  Loans whose anginal terms have been modified including those subject i forbearance
siralegies are considered renegobated loans Such reneg provide obj d of impairnent end the loan is assessed accordingly and as such
individual impaiment recogniion s acceleraled compared o those under nomal contacwal policy The Bank cumently has no matenal forbearance
programs in place with any of its customers

{g) Impalrment of financial assets
An assessment s made at each balance shest date o determune whether there is any obective evidenca that a specfic financial asset or a group
of financial assets may pe Imparec I such avidence exsis the estimated recoverable amount of that asset or a group of assets is determinad

and any imparment loss based on the net present value of future antoipated cash flows s grised in the G 1 income  statement
and credited to an allowance account In the case of equity investments impaument s reflected directly 83 & wnie down of the fnancial asset
Impairment losses on equly investments ara not reversed through the Income it whie any subsequent increases i thewr

value are recognmsed directly in equity

Objectve ewvidence that financial assets (including equity securbes) are impared can includa default or delnquency by a borower restructuring
of 8 logn or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise consider ncications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy
the discrepancies of an actwe market for & secunty or other cbservable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes i the
payment status of borrowers or Issuers In the group or econemic condtiens that comelate with defaults in the group In addmion for an investment
In an aquity secunty a sigmificant or prolonged decline in its falr value below its cost is objective svidence of mparmant

The net present value of the estmated future cash flows for laans and other interest bearng financal assets 5 dscounted at the financial asset's
orgnal effective wterest rate If a koan has 3 vanable interest rate the discount rate for measunng any imparment loss 15 the cument effectrve
interest rate The calcutation of the present value of the esymated future cash flows of a collateraised financal asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure lass costs for obtaining and sefing the collateral whether or not foesclosure 1s probable

in adddicn to spactfic provisions agamnst Individually significant financial assets the Group ailso makes collactive impaimant provisions on  groups
of financlal assets which although not dentfisd as requinng a specfic provisen have a greater nsk of default than the dsk at Intial recogribon
Financigl assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristes that are indicatve of the dedblors ablty to pay al amounts due
accordlng o the contractual terms and the collective Imparment proviswa 1s eshmated for any such group where credit risk characiensics of the
group of financial gssets has Cetenorated Factrs such 23 any deteroraton In county msk, wdustry fechnologcal cbsolescence as well as
dentfied structural weaknesses or detenoraton o cash fiows are whers relevant, iaken inio consxeraton and the amount of tha provison is based
on the histoncal iess patten wathin &ach group adjustad to reflect current economic changes

Loans together with the associated allowance ara writen off when thers Is no realsic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been reallsed
or has been transferred to the Group If In a subsequent year tha amount of the estmated impanment {6ss Incresses or dacreasss Decauss
of an event occumng after the imparment was recognised the previously recognised imparment loss is increase¢ or reduced by adustng the
allowance account If & write-off 13 later recoversd the recovery i cradied to the ‘provision for losse: on logns and advances non-tradng nvesiments
and other assets - net' in the consofdated income statement.
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{h) Hedge accounting

The Group enters into derivative instruments including futures forwards swaps and opbons 1 manage exposures 10 imerest rates and forewgn
cumency risks ncluding exposures arising from forecast transachons In order to manage parcular risks the Group applies hedge accounting for
ransactons which meet the specfied criteria Derivatives held for hedgng purposes are stated at far valus

At incepuon of the hedge relatonship the Group formally documents the relatonshp between the hedged nem and the hedgng instrument.
Inchuding the nature cof the rsk management objectves and stratsgy for undertaking the hedge The methods that will be used v assess the
effectveness of the hedgmg relatonship form pact of the Group s documentation

Alsc at the incepton of the hedge relaticnshp a formal assessment is undertaken to ensurs the hedging instrument s expected o be highly
effective In offseting the designated risk in the hedged item Hedges are formally assessad at each reporing date A hedge Is regarded as highly
effective if the changes in far valua or cash flows attnbutable to the hedged risk during the pedod for which the hedge is desgnaled were offset
In a range of 80% to 125% For sluations where that hedged iem is a forecast transacton the Group assesses whether the transacton 1s highly
prabable and presents an exposure to variatons in cash flows that could ul ty affect the consolidated income slaternent

For the purposes of hedge accountng hedges are classfied into two categones (i} far value hedges which hedge the exposure o changes in
the faw value of a recogmised asset or lability and (n) cash flow hedges which hedge exposure to vanabiity n cash fiows that 1B atnbutable to
& parscular sk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a forecasted transacton

(1) Farr vatue hedges

For far value hedges whieh mest the condtions for hedge accountng  any gan of loss from remeasunng the hedging mstument at
far vatue is recogrused imr In the cor income statement. The hedged em 13 adusted for far value changes relaung to the
fisk being hedged and the difference s recognised in the consaldated incoma statement

If the hedging instument expwes or is scld termunated or exercised or where the hedge no jonger meets the criteria for hedge accountng the
hedge relaborishp 1s termunated For hedged items recorded at amorysed cost, the difference between the camyng value of the hedged item on
terminaton and tha wvalue at which it would have been carned without being hedged 15 amorbsed over the remaining term of the orgna hedge f
the hedged rem 15 derecognised the wnamortsed far value adjustment s recogmsed immediately i the consolidated income statement.

(i) Cash fiow hedges

For cash flow heoges which meet the conditions for hedge accounting the porbon of the gan or kss on the hedging instument which s determaned
o be an effective hedge s recogmsed lntally in equty The neffectrve portion of the gam or loss if any on the hedging wnstrument 15 recognised
i clately n the cor 1t of Income a5 “trading income  net*  The Group had na cash flow hedges n place dunng the year

The gains or losses on effective cash flow hedges recogrised Inttally in equity are either transferred o the consolidated statement of income in
tha perod in which the hedged transacton Impacts the consoidated statement of income or inciuded in the inial measurement of the related asset
or Labilly

For hedges which de not quaify for hedge accounting any gans o losses arisng from changes In the far value of the hedging instrument are taken
directly to the consolidated income siatement for the year

Hedge accountng is discontiued when the hedgng nstument axpires or 5 sold  terminated o exerosed o no longer quakfies for hedge
accountng In the case of cash flow hedges ihe cumulatve gan or loss on the [ e in egury In equty untl the
forecasted transachon ooccurs unless the hedged transacton Is no longer expected to occur In which case the net cumulatve gan or loss recogrised in
squity s transferred o the d income 1t for the year

{i} Offsatting A {al 1
Financlal agsets and financal liabilties are only offset and the net amount repoited In the fi bal shest when thers ¢ a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and the Group intends to settle on a net basis

(i} Property plantand equipment

Property piant and equipment 1s stated at cost. kess accumutated depreciation

Depraciation of buldings and other prermaes and equipment 1S provided on 8 straght Bne bass over ther estimated useful lives
The estmated useful ives of the assets for the calcutaton of depreciation are as follows

-Leasehold improvements - over the period of the lease

« Other assets - 2 {0 5 years
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{k} Revenue recognition

{1} Interest

Interest income on loans and ad 1] to the consoll income  statement on an accrual basis unless the coflecton of prncipal
or nterest is deemed non-recoveratle in which case interest accrual Is suspended Interest income from financial assets 13 calculaied using the
effective interest yield method

{n) Fees and commussions

Fees angd commissions that constiute remuneraton for risk are taken to the consofidated Income statemiert over the duralon of the risk
Frontend fees net of drect costs are charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to a borower and are recognised over the Iife of the
related advance Other frontenxi fees are accounied for on a cash basis Fund management fees are credited to the income stdement on an
accrualy basis as services are provided

(m} Dividend income
Orvidend income 18 recognised when the right to receive payment s established

(rv) Operating leases
Rentals recervable and payabla under operating leases are charged in the consolidated Income statement on a straght line basrs aveér the lease term,

(v} Segment informaton
Operating segments are reported n1 a manner consistent with the intemal reportng provided to the chief operatng decsion-maker The chief
operating decsion maker has been wentfied as the A Commities inciiging the Chief Executve Officer and Deputy Chief Execuive Officers

(i) Cash and cash squivzlents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with central baniks excluding mandatory reserve deposils iogether with those deposits with
banks and other financial nsbtutons and treasury bills having an eriginal maturity of three months or less

{m) Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the Group hes a present obligabon arsing from a past event and the <osts to setile the obligaton are both
probable and able to be reliably estmated

{n) Employee bensfits

Defined benefit pension plan

Fension costs are recognised on a systematc basms so that the costs of providing retrement benefils to employees ars avenly maitched so far as
possible to the servica lives of the employees concerned Remeasurements of the net defined benefit kabihty which comprise actuarial gains or lossés the return on
plan sssets {&xcluding interest) and the effect of the asset celing ( f any) excluding nterest) are recogrised immediately in OC|

Defined contnbution plans
Ahli United Bank (UK) PLC also operates a defined conrtnbubon plan the costs of which are recogrised in the panod to which they relate

(o) Taxatlon

Deferred tax is recognsed In respect of gl temporary differences that have ongnated but nat raversed at the reporting date  whers
transactions or events have occurred at that date that wil result in an obhigation I pay more or nght to pay less tax except that defermed
tax assets are recognissd only to the extent that ihe Orectors consider that it is more hkely than not that there will be suitabla taeble profits
from which the futura raversal of the undertying temporary differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 15 measured on a non-discountad basis at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the pencds in which temporery differences
reverse based on tax rates and laws enacied o substantively enacied at the reporting date

(p) Fiduciary assets
Assets held in trust or in a fiduclary capacty (nota 28) are not treated as assets of the Group and accordingly are not incorporated In the consolidated
balance sheet.

{q) Financial g and loans i its

In the ordinary course of business the Group gives financlal guarantees consisting of letters of cradit, guarantees and acceptances Financial guaraniees
are conracts that require the Group to make specfied payments to reimburse the holders for a loss that Is incumed because a specfied hoder faills to
make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debi instrument Loans commiments are fim commitments 1o provide wedit under
pre-specified temns and condions

Financlal guarantees e&re intaty recognsed in the congofidated financial statements st far value. adusted for tansactons costs that s directly
atnbutatle to tha issuance of the g Subseq o intial L the Groups hability under each guarantes 15 measured at the hgher of the
amortised commission and the best estmate of axpenditure required to settls any financial obligation ansing as a result of the guarantee
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2 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group 3 income dunng the yezr related solety o banking activiies

For managerment purposea the Bank 15 organised nto three major business segments

- Retad banking prncipaly handing midrdual cusiomers daposit and current accounts providing consumer koans residential mortgages overdrafts cedit
cards and fund transfer fadilines

« Corporate banking {inchuding treasury and | 1ments) pringpalty g loans and other crecit faciites 8nd providing money markel and reasury $arvices
as well 23 management of the Bank s funding

- Pnivate banking and wealth management principally servicing high net worth chients through a range of investment products funds cradit faciliies trusts and
alternative investments

Transacitons between segmants including intarsagmental nterest charpes  are conducted at approxunais markat rates on #n arm s length basis

Segmens informaton for the year ended 31 Decamber 1013 13 as follows

RETAIL CORPORATE PRIVATE TOTAL
BANKING BANKING BANKING
8000 3000 $000 5000
Net mterest meome 8896 27 185 10 646 48 727
Net fee income 1,926 2220 12 6% 18,337
Other income / { expense) 9950 {85) 9,885
10,822 39355 23 252 73,428
Impaument recovenes 1 4 580 - 4581
Net operating income 10823 43935 23252 78,010
Operating expenses (397 {6 654) (17 002) (29,577}
Profit befere tax 6906 36277 6 250 43,432
Income 1ax expense {1 119) (5 086) (1012) {7,217)
Frofit ahet 1ax 5787 30 191 5238 0,216
Segmental aesets ] 601 920 [ | 3017 262 | | 498 415 4,117,601
Unallocated assels 34,343
Total assets 415,944
Segmental liabilbes L 696 [ 1 1620538 | 2133 159 3763897
Unallocated latdhtes 90,879
Total babilities 3854 678

Information for the year ended 31 December 2012 {Restated) is as follows

RETAIL CORPORATE PRIVATE TOTAL
BANKING BANKING BANKING

$000 $000 $000 $000/
Netl interest ncome 14 451 25609 12 552 52612
Net fee income 1375 2845 12 863 17082

Other incoma f { expensa) 6 839 (85) _8.754 |
158268 35293 25330 76,449

Impaimment {cherges) / recoveries. 245 {361) - (118}
Net operatng income 16073 34 932 2533 78,333
Qperating expenses (3638) (7 890) (15 662} {27,191)

Profit befors tax 12423 27042 9 667 49,142 |
Income Lax axpensa {3233) {7 020) (2 513) (12 766)
Profit after tax 9200 20022 7154 36,376
Segmental s5sets 1 627 686 [ [ 2273136 | | 490 625 3391747
Unaliocated assets 42 314
Total assats 31434 081
Segmental llabilibes [T 1233 | 1410727 f 1 660 501 3072,461
Unafllocatad liabiltes 101,963
Total leabed 1,174,424

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC

REPORT & FINANCLAL STATEMENT 2013
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2 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Intersst 1s analysed on & net basis above as this 1s the key interest perfonrmance indwcator for each segment.
Unalocated asseis ! habilives comprise derivabve financial instruments tax fixed assets and retirement benefit scheme ratated balances and prepayments
accruad income and other assets / accruals deferred ncome and other lizbilities as shown ¢n the Group Balance Sheet
nterast income 1s analysed by geographic area in note 3

3 NET INTEREST INCOME

2013 M2
300 $
Non-trading investments 22645 1293
Deposits with banks and other financigl msiubons 23258 24 787
Loans and advances 54765 2,713
Interest income 100,666 108 793
Deposits from banks and other financlal institutons 32,528 a1
Customer deposits 21212 22493
Syndicated loan 02
Subordinated habilaes 199 315
Intarest expense 53939 %181
Net interes: mcome 46727 2612
Interest income 15 analysed by oeographic area as follows
GULF UNITED
EURDPE COLPERATION| UNITED STATES OF
{exc! UK) COUNCL| KINGDOM AMERICA QTHER TOTAL
$000 5000 300! SO0 $000 $000!
Interest income
2013 35521 7,138 47 528 234, 10247 100,666
2012 33983 g182 49 089 34 17.215 108 793
4 OTHER QPERATING INCOME
2013 2012
§000 $000
(Loas) / Profit on sale of avalable-for sale nvestments and related hedging instruments {7} 225
income ansing on other fund mvesiments. 6077 5533
6070 5758
5 STAFF COSTS
2013 2012
$000 5000
Restated
Staff cost
wages and salanes 12076 10658
- social security costs. 131 1212
- other penson costs 1714 813
- other siaff costs 883 445
15 806 13.228

The average manthly sumber of employess dunng the year was 99 (2012 57)
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

AHLIUNTED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

2012 012
$00 $000
Profit before tax is stated after crediting
Income from listed securibes 22645 21293
Income from leaséd properues 110 11
Fee income from net fund manegement and performance fees 6,395 6895
Fes income from_tnust and other fiduciary acthaties 1925 1814
and after charging
Directors remunerabion 229 2050
Auduitor's remuneraton
group statutory audit fee 268 295
audit related s3urance semices 82 117
taxation compliance servces 82
Depreciabion 976 1m
Qperating lease rentals 2040 1483
Payments of $63 000 have been made 1 the defined contnbution scheme in respect of three Drecters  The emoluments ef the Directors do not inckide any
amounts w respect of the share based payment scheme  The emoluments include a8 lees and expenses and are stated gross before he deducton of UK
income tax The pension costs of the hughest paxd directar werd $25 000
The emoluments of the highest paid director in 2013 were $472 000 (2012 5440 000)
2013 202
Included within operating expenses were $000 5000
Restated
Staff costs note 5 15,806 13228
Depreciaton 976 1032
Cither operating expenses 12 785 12931
29 577 27491
7 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2013 212
$000! 5000
Reslated
Current 1ax expenss UK corparabon tax on profits for the year 11106 12 597
UK corporation tax relabng (o previous years {4,049} -
Detetred tax cherge  anginaton and reversal of temporary differences 160 169
income tax expense 7217 12766
2013 2012
$000 $000
Profif bafore tax 48 432 45142
Restated
Multiplied by the average rate of corporation tax in the UK of 23 25% (2012 24 &%) 11,281 12040
Effects of
Exgenses nol deductble for tax purposes 733 726
Income nat subject 1o tax (728) -
UK corporation tax relating to previcus years {4 0439)
Income tax axpense 7,297 12 766
The effective income tax rate for 2013 1 14 9% (201226 1%)
The tax debit relating Lo available-for-sale Investment profits o $3 2 million (2012 $7 4 millicn tax credit)
8 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS
GROUP AND BANK 2013 2012
000 $000
Repayable
- on demand 1299222 766529
- within three moaths 165 oao 25 599
484,222 796 928
T T2
$000 $000
Indluded withm the abave amounts
Amounts due from Erent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 32,083 1562 |
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9 REVERSE REPURCHASE AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

-

AHL UNITED BANK {UK}PLC

REPCRT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

[GROUP AND BANK 2013 2012)
3000 $000,
Reversa repurchasa agreements
Banks 15000 231132
2013 2012
$000 $000
Included within the above amounts
Amounts due from parent and fellow subsiciary undertakings 15 000 231132
GROUP AND BANK 2012 2012
5000 $000
Repurchase agreements
Banks 15204 289 601
2013 2012
$000
Included wathin the above
Amcunts dug to parent and feflow subsidiary undertakngs 15204 | 21034
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
GROUP AND BANK 2013 2012
$000 $000!
Repayable
on demand 15691 18824
within three months 103181 73512
between thrae months and one year 182 055 85873
between one ang five years 777 228 746 031
after five years 546 397 726 078
Peovisions (nate 11} 127,197) (41 028)
1,597,323 1609 390
2013 2012
000 $000
Inciuded within the above amounts
Amaunts due from feflow subsidiary undertakings [ -
PROVISIONS FOR LOSSES ON LOANS AND ADVANCES, IMPAIRMENT OF NON-TRADING
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS - NET
Loans and advances to banks customers and nen-trading invesiments are stated net of the follawing prowisions
GROUP AND BANK SUSPENDED PROVISIONS TOTAL
INTEREST
$000 3000 $900
At 1 January 2013 4014 37014 41,028
Appliad against nen-trading investments - 6638 6,638
Apgplied In writng off advances (2901) (12 857) 15 758)
Exchange rate movements 51 18 L]
Provision release for the year - (13 003), {13,003)
Charge during the year - 10871 10971
Retgvaries during the year . {2 748} (2,748)]
At 31 December 2013 1,164 28,013 27197
Of which
In respedt of loans and advances to customers {note 10} 27187
Releass for prowsions against loans and advances iy banks and customers {4 780)
Provisiogn charge 2geinst ivestments wn group undertakuings 149
Provision release for the year {4,581)

The net cammying amounts for specific mpared exposures wers $14 856 000¢ (2012 $11 392 000).
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12 NON-TRADING INVESTMENTS

GROUP AND BANK. GROUP GROUP BANK BANK
1013 oz 2n3 o2
3000 3000 $009 300

Non-trading wvestments 1ssued by Other issuers
Caentrat and Local Governmant 1 172 201718 4T 172 201 T8
Banks and Bullding Socletles »r 320 543 17 TA7 240 843
Othsr 218,509 200 824 214 589 200 824
1038 5858 752082 1015 852 752 043

Non-rading investments anatysed by maturity:

Due within one yesr 334877 19052 4ATT 19052

Due after one yaar 850 a8y 733011 850 639 733031
1,038 548 752 083, 1,038,558 752 ca3

Non-rading investments analysed by listing siatus

Listad 92,289 na sz 992 299, Teszz

Unitistad 43,200 3501 43 209, 36501
1038 wi 753 oA 7,038,588 | 752 63

Non-iading investments anatysed bty IFRS T fair value hierarchy

Lavel 1 W29 e sz W2.289 710522

Laved 3 43200 35 501 4 209 35501
1,035,558 752 083 1,035,858 752 083

For denvalives financial Instruments the fair valus hierarchy has been duscicsed in note 28

{m) Althcugh Group companies may acl as the general pariner and the manager of tertain furds they acl In 8 fkiuciary capacily and sa the Investments in those funda are
included aa cthar fund invsstmants.
{b) A Rguidity ciscount of 57 B55 000 (2012 38 B33 000) was heid aga:nst nan-trading iInvestments Leve: 3

Far valua

The movements for non-trading wvestimests Leved 3 ars as follows 2013
3000

ALY Janumcy 2013 -1l
Currency translation differences ™
Addiions 4 TH2
Rapaymanis 7 404}
Revakuation [T.50Y
At 31 Decamber 2013 4 2%

13 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

The Group has 8 50% inlerast and a 35% share In profits of Rosefarm Extates PLC w joinity controlled snlity involvad in the property development, mamnly centred
©on the eurchent buatness park m Thanet, KenL The Group's intarest in Rosefsrm Estates PLC Is accounted for uming the squity methed in the group financial
ataternenla

GROUP GROUP
3 2012
$000 3000
Assats 12433 B 418
Liabiives o263} (8 2583
[Equy 3170 182
Proporbon of Group ownarship 0% 50%
Proporian of Group shars of profit afler tax I5% 1%
Camying armouft of Invesim ent 3,210 81
oy 2012
3000 5000
Revente 14 507 320
Expenses {3201y (320)
Tax {z.308)
Profil after tax B4
[Group share of profiis afier tax T 31ae] ]
14 INVESTMENTS IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
BANK 013 €12
3000
[stmrs ot cost 103 w8
The following are the principal aubsidiaries All aperating entibes are sngaged In the provision of financlal sarvices
bame Country of incotporation Eercenags holding
NBU i Fund PLC Iraiand 100%
AUB Finance BY Tha Natherlancs 100%

A sgndicant portion of tha investment balance reiaiss to HBU 1 Fund PLE with a camying value of 3119 000 a1 31 Decamber 2013 {2012 $210000}
Dunng 2013 the Group has recognised an impasment of $199 000 1n relstion o the cost of investment in 113 1| Fund PLC

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLE
REPORT & FINANGIAL STATEMENT 2013
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND BANK

LEASEHOLD FIXTURES
IWPROVEMENTS! | FITTINGS AND
EQUIFMENT TOTAL
$000 3000/ $000
Coal
AL Jauay 2013 §%40 18070 7919
Addillons 508 L]
AL 31 Decambar 2012 5 940 1T 643 23 508
Dapracaton
ALY January 2013 3172 14 887 17 339
Charge for N yea' 262 "3 078
AL 31 December 2013 3435 15,380 18,818
el book vitd 4131 Deceniber 2013 2 808 2138 4 893
et book valg & 1 January 2013 2703 233 son
AL { January 2012 5840 18128 12068
Additions B42 342
ALYt Cucumbar 2012 5240 18470 22019
Depraciation
AL 1 January 2012 2900 13800 18308
Charge for tha year 203 768 1031
AL 31 Gacormber 2012 32 14 867 17 838
Nt bock vpiue at 31 December 2012 2788 2303 8071
Nt Hock vplue st 1 January 2012 3031 220 3 200
16 TAXATION
GROUP 013 2013,
1000 3000
Rettated
‘Current tax kabidty {9,500} {0835)
Dwlerrac inx a3sel 1#a 5831
{7 850) (1204}
BANK 2013 2012
30040 $000|
Rextatad
Cunwat i Sabilty (9.500) [ 828)
Deterred tax Ayl 1910 o001
(7 850) {1204}
GROUP AND BANK FaF] w12,
3000 3000}
Rastaiad
Dafwrad tax asaet at 1 January 54 Iy
Effaciof decrease tux rats 1277} IWJW
Deforred tax credt 117 bxil
[Befacted s Chargs for tha ysar Tieo) Tiew)|
Defarrad tax (charge) ! cradit i reserves {3.801] 1083
Defarrsd tax kit &t 31 December 1H4a 50831
GROUR AND BANK 2013 2012
Dowhacrec] Tax skt $000| 3000
Decaieratyg capitsl alowancss {52) 407
Tining ESwwnces  provsions s 158
Penaion fund iny 5000
1810 5431
The 2012 wers reatated n with AS19 (Revised 2011} Employes Benafis.
Defwred b is calculated on lemparary differsnces using the tax rate at wheh the tempemany differances ls sxpecied io unwind The Fnancs Act 2012
reduced tha UK corporation tax from 24% i 23% with effect from 1 Apal 2013 Tha Fnance Act 2013 further reduced the man Lax rate fo 21% from
1 Aprl 2014 and 20% from 1 April 201% Thass changes to he main laz mis had basn snacted at the baiance shest dats and thamfors been reflected in
thees fnancisl statements
47 PREPAYMENTS, ACCRUED INCOME AND OTHER ASSETS
] cRour| ] BANK
CROUP 2013 2012 3013 012
$000 $000
Prepaymants and acciund rgome. 10 088 17 804 10,068 17804
Ofvar eats 2003 7513 28 2512
18 Ta1 2017 13 T8 2037
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18 DEPQSITS FROM BANKS

AHLIUNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

GROUP | BANK
2013 2012 2013 02
$000 $000 $000! $000
Repayable

- an demand 13235 20317 13354 017
- wathunt threa months - 2586 - 2586
- between three months and one year - 100 000 - 100 000
13 235 122 903 13354 122903
| 2013 2012
$000 $000

Includec within the above amounts
[Amounts due i parent and feflow subsidiary undenakings 4376 114252

13 CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
GROUP BANK
2013 20n2 2013 W12
3000 3000 3000 $000

Repayable

on demeand 1580 635 B77 545 1 580,685 B77 341
within thres months 673,242 722 961 673 242 722961
betwaen three months and one year 673 764 842107 673764 842107
between one and five years 794 944 200 oo 794944 200 000
3722645 2642613 3,722 645 2643009
I 201 2012
$000 5000

Included within the above amounts
|Amuums due Io fellow subsidiary undertakings {on demand) 2 2

20 ACCRUALS, DEFERRED INCOME AND OTHER LIABILITIES

GROUP BANK
2013 2M2 2013 M2
$000 3000 4000 $000
Accruals and deferred income 23516 21269 23531 21269
Qther ligbilibes 4786 2740 4708 2700
23 302 23969 28237 23969
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SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

AHLIUNTTED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

These bomowings are subordinated to the claims of all other eraditors of the Bank
GROUP AND BANK

2013 202
—$000 $000
Stering loan swck carying intargst at six months LIBOR plus 34% 5,958 5842
Stariing loan stock camying interest at six months LIBCR plus 34% repayable 2016 818 821
Stering loan stock Carmng INtesest at six months LIBOR plus ¥4% repayable 2013 - 2 597
LSS loan stock camying interest at six months LIBOR phis ¥4% 5100 5100]
USS lcan siock camying interesi at stx months LIBOCR plus 3/4% repayable 2016 n7r 77
LI5S loan stock carmying interest at six months LIBOR plus 3/4% repayable 2012 2287
The funds provided by these subordnated logns raised by AUB Finance BV have all been
lent to the Bank on sumular terms but with interest payable at 1/8% over the rates shown
12,613 17 344
* The loan siocl is radeemabla by holders giving nobce of Tive years and one day
SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
GROUF AND BANK AUTHORISED ISSUED AND FULLY PAID
2013 2012 2013 2012
$008 $00Q! $040 £000
Ordinary shares al £1 each (50 000 shares) [ 80 [ B0
Qrdnary shares at $1 each 500,000 500 000 200,000 200 000
500 080 500 080 200 030 200 980
Share premum 128 128
|:_L— 200 208 200 208
RESERVES
GROUP SHARE SHARE OTHER] | RETAINED
CAPITAL| PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS TOTAL|
$000 000 3000 300¢ $000,
Changes in eguity 2013
At { January 2013 200 080 128 7257 52 172 259 837
Profit for the year 41 216 41 216
Available-for sale Investnents valugton gains 9618 - 92,818
Actuarial gans (IAS19 Revised 2011} 5 595 & 595
Tolal comprenensive INCome 8818 47 811 57 629
Divdend pax - {20 000) {20 000)
Cumency translation differences - - 2 2
At 31 December 2013 200 080 128 17075 70 985 297,268
GROUP SHARE SRARE OTHER] | RETAINED TOTAL
$000 __$000 $000 $000)] 5000
Changes in equity 2012 Rastated
Al 1 January 2012 200080 128 (10813) 71,388 260 781
Pansion fund Impact of adopbrg 14519 (Revisad 2011) Employes benefits (24,815) {24,615}
At 1 January 2012 - restated 200080 128 (10,815] 46 773 236 166
Profit for the year 36376 36 370
Available-for-sale investments valiabon gains 18972 - 168072
Actuadal gains {IA519 Revised 2011) (10,981} {10,981)]
Telal comprehensive Incoma 18072 25385 43 467
Dhidend pad {20 000} {20 00G)
Cumency transiabon differences - 4 4
At 3t December 2H2 200 080 124 7257 52172 259 637

The 2012 comparatives were restated m accordance with 1AS19 {Rewised 2011) Empioyee Benefits
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23 RESERVES (continued)

AHLI UNITED BANK {LIK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

BANIK SHARE SHARE OTHER RETAINED
CAPITAL FREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS TOTAL
$300 3000 $000 5009 $00Q
nanges (7 equity 2013
At 1 January 2013 200 080 128 7257 52 172 259 637
Profit far the year - - . g2 Jazn
Availabie-for-sale investments valuation gains - 9818 9318
Actuanal gains (iAS19 Rewised 2011) - - 6 505 6595
Tolal comrprehensive incoma 9818 44 828 54,644
Didend paid - (20 000) {20,000}
Cun'enﬂ transiaton differznces 2 2
At 31 December 2013 200 080 128 17075 77 000 294 283
BANK SHARE SHARE QTHER RETAINED
CAPITAL PREMIUM RESERVES EARNINGS TOTAL
3000 3000 $000] $000 3000
Changes In equity 2012 - Restated
At 1 January 2012 200 080 128 (10 815)| 71388 260 781
Pension fund impact of adopting IAS18 (Rewised 2011} Empioyes benefits - (24 €15) (24 615}
Al 1 January 2012 restated 200 080 128 (10 815) 46 773 236,166
Profit for the year - 36 376 36 376
Available-for sale investments valuaton gains - 18072 18072
Actuarial gains (IAS19 Rewsed 2011) - (10 981) (10 981})|
Tolal comprehensive income - - 18072 25395 43 467
Drdend paid - - (20 000) (20 000}
Currency translation differences - - 4 4
At 31 December 2012 200 080 128 7257 52 172 259 637
The 2012 comparatives were restated w1 accordance with IAS19 (Revised 2011) Employee Banefits
24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
GROUFP AND BANK 2013 012
000 $000
Guarantees 13,501 10177
13503 10177
To faciitate its day to-day secunties setllement operabons Ahli United Bank (UK) PLC has given a floating charge on its debt secunties portfolio {note 12).
An aged analysis s given below
GROUP AND BANK 2013 2n2
0G0 $000
within one year 13025 9708
over five years 473 469
13503 10177
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24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
ecgraphic erea and Industry sector &3 follows

25

Co ent kabifibes ana a

AHLI UNITED BANK {UK) PLC

REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

GROUP AND BAN 2013 2012
$000 5009
Goegraphic area
Evrope (excluding United Kingdom) 144 167
Gut Cooperation Courxal Countries 9,163 8986
United Kingdom 412 BB
Cther 75 216
13,503 10177
2013 012
3000 $000
Industry sector
HManufactunng - 1wy
Perscnal 610 €01
Real Estate 18 18
Govemment 12875 9391
13503 10177
COMMITMENTS
The amounts shown below are intended to provide an indication of the volume of business and not of the undertyng credit or other risks

GROUF AND BANK CONTRACT CR UNDERLYING
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT
2013 2012
$000 $000
Formal standby laciiies credil ines and other commitments 1o lend
- within one year 106 265 89812
- between one and five years 70 282 331254
- over five years 15434 16 659
191 381 118765
Forward and futures contracts outslanding at 91 December 2012 are analysed in nate 26
AL 31 December 2013 there wera $1 374 000{2012 $1 618 000) contracted capital commitments
Commitments are analysed br raphic region and indusiry sector as follows
GRI AND BAN; 2011 2
$ 5000
Geagraphic region
Europe {exciuding United Kingdom} 66,793 2381
Gulf Cooperaton Councl Cauntries 31,603 35161
timited Kingdom 82,257 85,738
Other 11 348 §485
191911 19765
jGROUP AND BANR 2013 7012
<[] $000
Industry secior
Finance 29994 3169
Manufacturing 6502 27 451
Personal 46 475 ¥ 3ra
Real Estate 108 962 8277
Cther L] 9474
191,981 119785
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25 COMMITMENTS (continued)

There are outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows

GROUF AND BANK 2013 2012
$000 $000]
-within one year 2040 1993
between one and five years 3 467 7818
-over five years 7 670
5 507 17 481

Clperating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Graup for leases of offce properues

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT
Ehe gat;oé ris'l:s associated with the Bank s and Group 8 businesses are credit nsk hquidity nsk operational nsk and market risk
redit Ris

Credt Risk 1s the risk that compames finanaial institutons and other counterpartes will be unable 1o meet their obiigatons to the Group  Credit Rek anses
prncipally fram lending but also from other transactions invobwng on and off balance sheet nsruments  The Risk Committee in conunchion with the Risk
Management Department have the responsibility for developing and implementing policies to ensure that all exposures are propedy pre-approved measured
and controlled With the excepton of certan small retail Soans afl credits are independently pre-approved including for cradits above a set kmit by the Parent
Undertaking s Executive Commitiee Credit propasals are put through a comprehensive risk assessment which examines the customer's financial condition
and tradng peformance nature of the business qualty of management and market posiion In gddibon an intemal risk ratng model scores these
quanttative and qualtatve factors The credit appraval decision 18 then made and terms and condibions set. Exposure Imits are based on the aggregate
exposure to the counterparty All credit exposures are reviewed at least annually  Measurement of credits includes geographic product market and ndradual
counterparty concentraben Small loans are not authonsed by the parent undertaking

All exposures are checked daily against approved limits independently of each business unit. and are reperted to the senior management.

The Group s first pnonty when making leans is b estabhsh the borrower's capacity to repay and not rely pnncipally on secunty / collateral Where the
customer’s financial standing 15 strong facilites may be granted on an ungecured basis but when r y coll I 15 an tial credit nsk mitigant
Acceptable forms of collateral are defined within the credi rsk framework and conservatve valuaton parameters are also pre-set and regularty revewed to
reflect any changes in market condibons  Secunty structures and legal covenants are also subject to regular review 10 ensure that they continue to fulfil ther
intended purpose and remam i hne with market practice  Guidelines are in place regarding the ptability of types of coll } and valuaton parameters

The pnnapal collateral types are as follows

- martgages over residential properties

- changes aver business assets such as prermises plant. stock and receivables

- chamges over commeraal properties being financed and

- charges over financial nstruments such as debt secunties and equities
The Group moniors the market value of collateral and requests addibonal collateral when necessary in acoordance with the underying agreement.
Three possession orders were obtained in 2013 $1 8 milhen (2012 $Nil milion)
Amears poiicy 1s sincily controlled - The size of the balance sheet 15 such thatit 1s possibie to menitor each indivdual exposure 0 evakate f speafic povisions
are necessary and adequate A dedicated corporate recovery team within the Risk Management Department prowides managenal focus to remedial svabons.
Addibonally a caollective provision is held to cover any Josses whers there s objective swdence that losses may be present in components of the fnancial
assets portfolio at the reporting date  These have been estmated based on historical pattems of losses in each component the credit ratings zliotted 1o the
bormowers and reflecting the cument economic dirate in which the borrowers operate  The majonty of lending excluding interbank 1s secured on assels  The
main geographical credi, exposure 1s 1o the UK markets
1t 15 the Group s pohcy b maintain consistent intemal risk ratngs across the crednt pertfalio The credit quatity of the portfolio of Ians and advances that are
neither past due nor impared can be assessed by reference to the Group s intemal credit rabing system  This facilitates focused portfolic managemen of the
inherent nsk across all ings of business

The three credit quality ratings given can be equated to the followmng nsk grades

Hgh Standard Risk Ratng 110 4 Undoubted through to Gocd Credit Risk
Standard Risk Rating 5t0 6 Saustactory thmugh o Adequate Credit Risk,
Watch list Risk Rating 7 Watch List Credit Risk

The rating system 15 supported by vanous financial analytics and quaitatve market informabon for the measurement of counterparty nsk
Leans and advances are further analysed in the {ables below into the following categenes
Ratal prncipally mdwidual customers consumer loans residenbal morigages and overdrafts
Corporate principally loans and other credit facines for corporate nd Inshtubonal customers  Also included are cradit faciliies
to high net worth indmduals
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)
Gmiss Exposuras which are neither past due nor Impaired, are analysed by asset ciass and broad risk categaries as follows

2013 HIGH
STANDARD STANDARD, WATCH-
GRADE GRADE LIST TOTAL
$000 $000 3000 —$000!
Loans and agvances to banks 1464072 148 1,464,222
Denvative financlal instruments 5832 5,812
Reverse repurchasa agreements 15000 15000
Loans and acvances to customers
Retal 536 23¢ rig7al 4878 55030
Cormporate 790196 13341 11 425 935,092
Investment securiues
Available-for-s.ale 973653 61 899 - 1035558
Imestments in a jont wentung e - - 3210
3788210 22279 16,303 4 027 252
2012 HIGH
STANDARD STANDARD WATCH-
GRADE GRADE] usT TOTAL
$000 $000! 3000
Loans and advances to banks 796 512 418 796 928
Denvative financtal instruments 11285 11285
Raverse repurchase agreements 231122 231132
Loans and advances to customers
Retak 563 668 36717 7349 606 934
Coperate 727 739 184 019 4660 926 418
Investment secudtes
Avarable-lor sale 705359 53 362 - 758 121
Investments In a joint venture 81 - 81
3035686 283 574 12 009 3 331 589
An aged analysis of gross Loans and pdvances which are past dua but not impairad I3 gven below
RETAIL CORFORATE RETAIL CORPORATE
2013 2013 2012 2012
$000 $000 $000 $000
Less than 30 days 6579 48 976 22233 17217
Between 30 days and 60 days 8716 8 553 4739 12 486
Between 60 days and 50 days 7737 £82 6353 6850
Greater than 90 days 1171 7703 8330 4522
27,203 g5 814 41 655 41115
Col 133 885 186 584 57 716 136 469
The collateral comprises residentlal poperties
Gross and net exposures to individually impared Loans and advances can be analysed as follows
GROSS MET GROSS NET
2013 ms3 2012 2012
$000 $000 3000 $000
Retail 1266 969 573 12
Comporata 26 807 9 867 33 663 11380
28073 10,856 34 236 11382
Collateral 19 382 19320
The cotlateral held agamst ndnadugily impared loans compri and res«d | properties

Specfic prowsens and nterest in suspense plaling 317 217 000 (2012 $22 B44 000) were held aganst these wmpayed boans and advances
A collectrve impairment provision totaling $9 980 000 (2012 §18 184 000} was held agawmst other loans and advances

No inrdmwduzity Impared loans were restructured dunng the year Interest income includes $253 071 (2012 $221 945} recovered on mpaired
Loans and Advances
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Nat Exposures are analysed by geography a3 follows

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT (continued}

AHLIUNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPQORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

2013 UNITED
EURGCPE, GCC| UNITED| |STATES OF
{exdd UK) COUNTRIES KINGDOM AMERICA OTHER TOTAL
$000 5000 $000 $000 50001 $000
Loans and advances 10 banks 450115 117 584 463 831 326918 105,766 1,464 222
Dertvative financat instruments . 233 5590 - - 5832
Reverse repurchase agreements - 15 000 - - - 15 000
Loans and agdvances W customery
Retall 55 745 161 841 250 766 10167 114 871 596,530
Corporate 454 922 33090 289958 2548 220275 1,000 793
Invesiment securibes
Avalable-for-saie 200487 155619 424 986 137 243 429 4,035,558
Investments in & jont venture 3210 - 3210
Contingent labilities 144 91683 4121 75 13503
Commitments €6 793 31603 82 188 2416 8981 191 981
1,230,906 524 243 1524 879 353404 693 397| 4,326 629
2012 UNITED
EUROPE GCC UNITED| |STATES CF
{excl UK} COUNTRIES KINGDOM AMERICA OTHER TOTAL
$000 $000 3000 $00Q 5000 $000
Loans and advancas 1o banks 202 746 283539 238 529 68942 A2 796 928
Derivatve financlal instruments 1485 1320 8490 - - 11295
Raverse repurchase agreemenis - 231132 - - - 231132
Loans and advances to customery
Retai 76 180 22705 70 407 5206 174 163 648 661
Corparate 434 914 126918 247 909 199 153791 960 729
Investment securities
Avaitable-for sale 200 308 156616 142 025 14 507 238 627 752 083
Invesiments i a join! venturg - 81 - - at
Contingent ltabd ties 308 8986 808 - 75 10177
Commitments 22 381 5182 55737 9 6 476 119 765
938 322 BG6 376 1063 986 88 863 573304 3 530 851
Mot Exposures are analysed by industry as follows
2013 MANLA REAL
FINANCE FAGTURING PERSONAL ESTATE OTHER| TOTAL
$000 $000 $000) 5000 3000 $000
Loans and advances to banks 1464 222 - - - 1,464 222
Darivetive fingncial Instruments 5765 . - 67 5832
Raverse repurchase agreements 15000 - - - 15000
Loans and advances to customers
Retad - 500 BBS 941 1 450 596 530
Corporate 9478 1681% 958 259 16 237 1000 793
Investment secunties
Avadable-for sale 378 159 45466 - 611 733 1,035,558
Investments in a joint venture 3210 3210
Contingent hiabllites - 610 18 12 875 13503
Commitments 26954 6502 4§ 475 108 962 48 191,981
1902814 68,787 547,974 1 164,640 642 410 4 326 629

n
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

AHLI UNITED BANK {UK) PLC

REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

2012 WANU REAL
FINANCE FACTURING PERSONAL ESTATE OTHER TOTAL
$000 $000 5000 3000 $000) 3000,
Loans and agvances to banks 796928 - . 796 928
Cerivative financtal instruments 8830 3301 - 2135 11 295,
Reverse repurchase agreements 231132 - - 231132
Loans and advances (o customers
Retail 438 768 208 503 390 648 661
Corporate 4768 5721 65123 B37 284 17827 960729
Investment securites
Avalable-for sale 385012 48 857 - 320214 752 083
Hinvestments in a joint venture - - 8% - B1
Contngent liabdibes - 167 801 18 9391 10177
Commitments 81689 21 451 36374 38277 9474 119765
1434 859 110 196 541 202 1085183 359431 3530851
Liquidity Risk

U(i;l!dlly‘ 1§ managed by the Asset and Liataity Committea which ensures the ability of the Group to meet the demands of customers for addisonal bonmand o replace
exl po

tng deposits as they mature bath under nofmal market condibons as well as for a range of board approved mild 10 extreme siress scenanos A
seunties s manianed in order to provde bigisdity dunng times of stress  Thesa assels meet cnteria sat
these bighly kquid assets axceeds a minumal amount 381 by the PRA based upon iis own prescnbed stress scenano

of hghly liquic
oy the PRA under its Liquidity Guidelnes At 2 bmes the value of

5
Liquidity policy covers all currencies and speafies the means of montonng the Group s kiquidity adequacy as specified above mcluding the wolatility of the deposit base and

dwersificatian of funding
Procedures in the event of extreme market condibons are also included as well es responsibiliies fof reparting and approvirg reparts and limits

The undiscounted contractual cash flows of financial kabilites at the repering date of both dervative and non-d tive financial inst

ts are as follows

2013 Alter Alter
3 monihs 1 year Per
Within Within but withun but withen After Balance,
1 month 3 months 1 year Syears Syears Tatal Sheet
$000 $000 $000 £000 3000 $0a0 $000
Deposits from banks 13240 - - 13240 43 235
Repurchase agreements 15226 - 15226 15204
Customer deposits 1684159 372757 6575061 795680 - 3727657 3722 645
Subordinated llatilites 15 29 132 2217 11,446 13839 12613
Total lizbiites 1897414 372786 690 419 797 897 11 448 3763962 3763 697
Derivatives nflows (885) (1 081) (3 003) {19 150) (3 730) (27 149)
Derivatives outflows It 10 066 1B 467 33930 1367 61561
Total 1,900,260 31,771 705883 812 677 8083 3,809674
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

2012 ARer After
3 months 1 year Par| |
Whthin Within but within but within Aftar Batance [
1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5years Total Sheet |
$000 $000 $000 $000 5000 $000 3000, !
Deposits from banks 2293 - 100 481 - . 123012 122 903
Repurchase agreements - - 289 743 - - 289743 289 601
Cusiomer deposits 147758 255476 BAT 434 197 823 - 26848431 2642 613
Subordinated liabilties 20 40 5020 214 11325 18 599 17,344
Total kabilties 1370709 255,516 1242 678 200017 11325 3,080,245 3072461
Derfvatives - Inflows {3 206} (3 655) {4 396) (15 801) (3 447) {30,505}
Derivauves - outflows 2028 G 984 15277 40 863 4205 89 457
Total 1 369,531 258 845 1253 55% 225079 12 183 3119197

The liability maturtes disclosed in the table are contractual the maority of the deposits by customers are expected to be mlled over rathar than repaid on the
contractual maturity date  Consequently the Group assesses the lkelihood of repayment of thesa liabdiies when assessing its hquicity

Oparational Risk
Operatonal Risk s the nsk that deficiences in miormabon systems o ntemal controls resudt i unéxpected busmess fin ancial and operating losses  The
wentification and control of these nsks is managed by the Board of Directors  The Bank s Risk Management Department ceme s out a regular review of alf

operatonal aress o ensure opesational risks are being properly controed and reported o the Opx Risk C
Contingency plans are in place io achiave business contnudy n the event of sefous discupbons to business operations
Market Risk

Market nsk 18 the dsk of patenbal financial loss that may arise from adverse changes in the value of financal nstruments or portfolio of fingnaal instruments due o
movements m interest rates foregn exchange rates or other pnges and wolatilibes This sk arises from asset Kabidity mismatches changes that cccur in the yeld
curve foremn exchange rates and changes n wolatiities/imphed volatdives m thae market value of dervatrves The Group dassifies exposures to market risk into
elther tradmg or non-trading portfolos Gven the Group 8 low risk strategy aggregate market risk levels are considered low The Group utilzes Vatue-at-Rsk (VaR)
maodels 1 assst in estmating potental losses that may arise from adverse market movements n addibon %o non -quantiative risk management techniques The
market sk for the trading portfolio 1 managed and monitored on a VaR mathodology which refiacts the mter dependency between risk variatles Non-iradng
portfolios are managed and moamored using stop loss Emits and other sensitivity analyses

Currency nsk ts the risk that the funcbonal currency vakue of & finandial instrument will Ructuate due to changes in forel gn exchange rates

The Group continually monmtors s curmency nsk posiion and has systems and controls in place that ars able to calcutate d 8 foregn cumency exposures ALCO has
set bmits fer each qumency and exposures ere measured against these on o defy basis  Any currency risk ansing from the G roup s commensial banking and lending
activibes in the banking bock is fransfemed ©© and managed within the lnits of the trading book

Tha Group had the follpwing significant net exposures denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December

Long [ (Short) Long T (Shart)

2013 2012

$000 $000

Bahrairi Dinar 6744 (5943)
Euro 1942 57
Great Brtain Pound 2135 (5133
Kuwait Cinar {445) {245)
Omani Riyal {51} 178
Other (592) 1710
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

AHLI UNITED BANK {UK) PLC

REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

Interest rate nsk anses from the possibility that changes in mterest rates will affect the value of finandal mstruments or the fulure profitabiity of the Group
The Group I1s exposed o interest rate fisk within its Treasury operabons which 1s monitored utlising VaR technigues as detalled n the VaR secton below  Addibenally the
Group 5 exposed to interest rate sk n its non-trading book due to mismaltches between the repricing dates of assets and kabiibes The net exposure 1s measured daily in
terms of the number of equivalent futures contracts in each curency required to hedge the nsk  This risk 15 moniored within agreed limits and the expasures at the end of the

year in total and by indnachsal currency were minumal

Tha total interest rate mismatch_induding the effect of interest rate contracts used for hedging purposes _as at the year end is stated n the table below

2013 After After After Non-
Effective 3 months 6 maonths 1 year nterest
Interest Within but within but wathin but wthin After beanng
Rate 3 months & months 1 year 5 years 5 years funds Total
% $000 5000 3000 $000 5000 $000 sbop
Assats
Loans and advances to banks a1 1469 637 - - 1,469,637
{including cash)
Reverse repurchase agreements az 15600 - - 15,000
Loans and advances o customers 35 1501 991 47 441 44 083 - 3808 1,597,323
Nen-trading Investments (including a jomt veniure) 34 305 098 122 148 - 565043 46 479 1,038 768
3291 726 169,589 44083 565043 50,287 3120 728|
Non-interest eaming other assets - - - 31216 3N 216
Total assets 3 291 726 - 169 533 44 083 565043 81503 4151 944
Liabllities
Depasits from barks o8 13235 - - - 13235
Customer deposits oa 288350 607 873 85 890 165 351 - 3722645
Repurchase agreements 11 15204 - - - 15 204
Subordinated kabilties 13 - 12613 - - - 12 613
2896 766 635 650 65880 165 35% - - 3763897
Neon-interest beanng other habinies - - - - 90 979 90 979
Equity shareholders funds - - - 297 268 297 264
Total labilibes 2 896 766 635,690 65 830 165 351 348 247 4151 944
Total assets less
total llabilities 394 960 (635 890) 193 699 {121 268) 585043 (306 744) -
Off balance sheet items affectng
interest rate sensitaty 757 352 {45 956) (711 396) - - -
Interest rate sensitivity gap 1152 312 (635,690} 57743 {832 664) 565,043 (306 T44)
Cumulatrve intarest rate sensithvity gap 1152 312 514 622 574,365 {258 299) 306744

All dervatve instruments held by the Group the effect of which 1s to alter the interest bases of the partfolo of assets and labihtes are reflectad in tha above table

Short-term debiors and crediters are nchided in the above table as non-interest beanng items
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REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

2012 After After After Non-
Effective 3 months 6 months 1 year intergst
Interest Within butwithun but within but within After beanng
Rate 3 months 6 months 1 year 5 years 5 years hunds Total
% $000 $000 5600 5000 $000 3000 5000
Assots
toans and advances to banks 02 789 081 - - 799 061
(includng cash}
Reverse repurchase agreements 02 231132 - - 231132
Loans and advances to customers 37 1451812 45 881 28 309 79320 306 3671 1 609 390
Non-trading Investments (ncluding a jomnt venture) 34 15 052 521 530 185 40 35642 752 164
2 482 006 45 381 47 361 510 850 166 336 39313 3,391,747
Non-interest eaming other assets - 42314 42 314
Tala! assets 2 482 006 45 881 47,361 510,850 166 336 81627 J 434 061
Liabllitles
Deposits from banks 11 22903 100 000 - - 122903
Customer deposits 1 600 506 530 647 314 580 196 880 - 2642613
Repurchase agreements 11 268 987 20 614 + 289 601
Subordinated flabillies 17 344 - - 17 344
1623 409 916 978 335 194 186 880 - 3072 461
Non-interest beanng other labilizes 101963 101 963
Equity sharghalders funds - - 259637 259 637
Total habuibes 1623 4093 916 978 335194 196 880 361 600 3434081
Total assets less
total Gabllitles 858 597 {E71 097) {287 833) 413970 166 336 {274 973) -
Off balance sheet tems affecting
nterest rate sensibvity 592 522 127 074 {719 596) - -
Interest rate sensitivity gap 1451119 (B71097) (160759)  (305,626) 166 336 (279973)
Cumulative Interest rate sansiivity gap 1451 119 580 022 419 263 113 837 279 973 -

All denvative instruments held by the Group the effect of which 15 Ie alter the interest bases of the portfolio of assets and habiibes are reflected in the above table
Short term debtors and creditors are ncluded m the above table as non-nterest bearing tems
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)
R

Val
The Group & expoaura to market nsk 1s monitored using the VaR r gy of g potantial losses
VaR © a tech which tha loases that could occur on risk posibons taken due to movementa i markel rates and prices over a

spacified ime honzon and to a given level of confidence VaR ls catculated on an hrstancal simulaben basis using ane-day movements in market rates
and prices 8 99% confidence level and taking into account the actual comeletions observed hustorically betwean different markets and rates Tha ane-
day movementin market prices 1s calculated by reference to market data from a 100 trading day fustory VaR shoukl be viewsd in the context of the
fimtations of the methodology used

Thesa include
- Tha use of & one-day hokling period assumes that ail positions can be liquidated or hedged in one day this dosas not fully capture the market Hak
anwng from tmes of liquicity whaen ane-day Iiuidation or hedging may not be possible
- The usa of a 99% confidence measure does not take account of any ksses that might occur beyond this leval of confidence
The use of histonical data as a proxy for estmating futura evants may not include all potential events particutarly those that are extreme in nature
- Correlabons in the future may change from these cotrelations shserved in the past.
VaR 18 calculated at the tlose of business with intra-day expesures nat being subjedt to intra-day VaR calculations

The key VaR positions for the Group are as follows

Foreign Interesat Effects of

sxchangs ratn covariance| Total

$000 $000 $000 $000

At 31 Decembar 2013 % 0 - 36

At 31 December 2012 (&3] 74 - K2l
Minimum

2013 6 L N 13

2012 14, (1) 1) 12
Maximum

2013 (33 75 72

2012 79 - - 79

Tha Graup Is tharefare confi wathin a 99% canfi interval that, given the nsks as at 31 December 2013 it wall not 1ncur a one day loss on s

trading book of more than $36 000 (2612 $7 1 000) based on the VaR model used

Tha 2013 average daily key VaR positions for foraign exchange and interest rate were 522 000 {2012 523 000) and $13 000 (2012 $Nil) respectivaly
Datly VaR 1s independantly checked against board appraved VaR imits Furthermore the Groups exposure to interest rate nisk i1s measurad dasly
against hmds by currency on a detaled matunty ladder in futures posiuon equivalents Risk 13 further contralled by an extensive program of stress and
scanario testing perfornad monthly which calculates the profis and losses which would result from a vanaty of projected mterest and exchange rats
shifts Tha VaR futures equivalents and stress/scenanc reports are prasented to and discussed with the senkor management of the Group at monthly
Asset and Liabilty Committee meetings to ensure knowledge and understanding of the Group 8 poarhons strategies and rasultant risks ramain current
amang all relgvant staff

Fair values measurement

The Group uses forward and futures derivative contracts as part of its asset and labiity management process to hedge undertyng on-balance shest
positona The use of denvatives 1s controlled through the Graup s Risk ¢ which 18 an indeperdent area of the Group The Risk departmont 18
rasponaible for ensunng that all nterest and exchange rate nsk s undertaken within the policy gudalines set by the Board and the Assat and Liability
Committes

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instrurents by valugtion techniques

Level 1 Quoted {Unadjusted) prices i active markats for klentical assets and habiltiss

Level 2 Other techmques for which all Inputs which have a significant affect on the recorded fair value are observahle either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 Tachnigues which use Inputs which have a sgnificant sffect on the recorded fair value that are not based on obeervable market data

2013 2013 2012 2012
3000 $000 $000 $oon
Lavel 1 Leval 2 Level 1 Lavel 2
Derivative azsets
Interest rate awaps - 5 B56| §272
Forward Exchange contracts 178 - 4 977| -
Options - 48
{Derivative labilties
{Interest rate swaps {21,345)| - (40 255)
jFonward Exchange contracts (2 837) (5 098)
Cumency swaps {20,552) (3 783) -

Thers are no financial instrumants other than thosa disclosed In hote 12 for non-trading Investments that qualify for classification under Leval
3 a8 at 31 December 2013 and 2012 Dunng the year 2013 and 2012 there have been no transfers between Levelz 1 2 and 3

AHLE UNITED BANK (UK} PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013
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After 1 year|
within 1 but within After
year) 5years S5years Tota
$000 3000 $000 $000
Contract or underlying principal amount, by maturlty
Exchange rata contracts held for trading purposes
2013 143 308 - 143 308
2012 47711 - 47711
Exchange rate contracts held for hedging purposes
2013 400 000 237955 - 637955
2012 100 000 200 000 - 300000
Interest rate contracts hek! for rading purposes
2013 27 591 2150
2012 26378 26378
Interest rate contracts hekt for hedging purposes.
2013 196 716 586 907 150 053 931676
2612 215422 615346 170 115 1000883
Equity based contracts held for hedging purposes
2013 -
2012 42 632 42632
Replacement costs, by matunty
Exchange rate contracts
2013 178 - 178
2012 4917 4977
Interest rate contracts
2013 1930 475 3Im 55656
2012 256 2007 4009 6272
Equrly based contracts
2013 - - - -
2012 48 - - 46
Positive Paositive MNegative Negatrve
values values| values values
2013 2012 2013 2012
$000/ $000 3000 $000
Fair values
Exchange rate contracts hekd for trading purposes 178 4977 {2,637) {5096)
Exchange rata coniracts hekd for hedging purposes - - (20 552} (3783)
Interest rata contracts held for trading pumposes 1,328 1745 (2,019} {24238)
Interest rate contracts held for hedging purposes 4327 4527 (19 326}, (7773
5§32 11249 (44 5M4) (49 088)
Equity basad contracis held for hedging purposes 46 - {45}
Negativa values ncludod with host cantrag! wathin tusiomer deposts
58312 11295 {44 534) (49134}
FIE] 2mz2
$000 $000
Crodil risk welghted amount
Exchange rate contracts
- for rading purposes 1,284 33
- for hedging purposes 2,254 2243
Interest mig contracts
- for trading purposes 293 s
- fof hedging purposes 2373 2233
Equity basad contracts
- for hedging purposes 521

a7
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT {continued)

The replacement costs of denvatives can ba analysed as follows

Financial msttutions Non-financial insttubons
13 2012 m 2012
$000 $000 5000 $000
Exchange rate contracts
- far trading purposes 25 4847 151 330
- for hedging pumpases -
Interest rate cantracts
- for traching purposes 1329 1745 -
- for hedging purposes 3,004 2391 1323 2136
Equity based contracts
- for hedging purposes - 48
QECD Non- OECD
2013 2012 2013 M2
$000 $000 5000 $000
Exchange rate contracts.
- for trading purposes 9 3657 167 1320
- for hedging purposes - - .
Interest rate contracts
- for trading purposes 1,329 1745 -
- far hedging purposes 4327 4527 -
Equity based contracts
- for hedging purposes 46 -
Galn and losses on financial instruments
Trading ncome 1s analysed as follows
2013 012
$000 $000
Treasury 59 g5
Foreign exchange 607 401
666 996

Treasury profits denve from interest rate futures options FRAs and swaps

Foreign exchangs profits denve from spot and forward foregn exchange contracts

Net losses on financial instruments held for hedging purposes anrd gains on the underying hedged nsk were $11 626 000 {2012 $9 615 000) Thesa
denved from interest rate and equity based contracts

Profit on sale of avalable-for-sale Investments and refated hedging instruments 15 detailed 1n note 4 and provisions against avatable-for-sale iInvestments
are detalled in note 11 These nclude gans of $Nil {2012 SNil) which have been recycled from Other Reserves  Unrealised gans and losses are included
in Qther reserves (note 23)

Falr values of other financial instruments

Trading Book

The Groups frading book compnses denvatives  All amounts are included in the balance sheet at far value

Non Trading Book

The far values of hsted and publicly traded secuntes held for non-trading bock purpeses {comprising debt secunties and fund irvestments) are disciosed
under the refevant balance sheet note

The far values of ather nor-trading boak balances approximate to their camying value in the balance sheet whare a liquic and active market exists

Trus 15 because these financial assets and habilibes are largely repnced at regular intervals depending cn the terms and condiions of the nstrument
and the resultant apghcabl ] pp tha cument spreads that would apply for bal with simlar Where the financial instrument
pnong indudes a fed rate element, this nsk s hedged and valued in accordance with the accountng policy on hedge acoounting {note 1 {h) )

The farr value of financial habilites ts not materially different to their batance sheet value

27 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The utimate holding company of the Bank i1s Anli United Bank B S C  which 5 incorporated vy Bahrain - Copies of the group accounts are avaitable fom
Ahli United Bank B 3 C at PO Box 2424 Mzanama Kingdom of Bahramn

28 MANAGED FUNDS

Funds managed or administerad ¢n behalf of customers and te which the Bank does not have legal itle are not included in the Bank s balance sheet The
value of all such funds managed by the Group at 31 December 2013 was §1 851 000 000 {2012 $1 761 000 000}
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29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

{1} Defined banefits pension plan
The Bank operates & funded definec benefts scheme for ds empdyses whd jomed pror to 1 March 2001 The asseta 6 the penzon schema are held
wdapendently of the Group 4 adaats N & Léparata tnstee adminetered fund As from 31 March 2010 the scherme was closad with respact to future accruab

Tha amourts recogrisad i the balance sheet sre as folows

GROUP AND BANK 2013
3300
Presant vaiw of scheme s chigabtors 183 134
Fas vatus cf plan assats (284 801)
[EE5)
Unrecognmmed net actuarsl ksses
Lamblidina / {Arssats) n the Baarce Shaet B58)
Panoon fund Impact of adopting LAS13 {Revised 2011) EME banefits
Linbltms i the Balanca Shest LE

The 2012 comparabves for the retrement benafit obiigations ware restialed in accordance wih [AS 19 (Reviaed 2011) Empiayss Banefits Under 1AS 10 (Revised 2011)
il o @ FeGUIrAMent that the net aciuanal gans and losses are through other ncome

Undar (AS 15 (Revisad 2011), tha daficd in the Furd s at 31 Decamber 2013 of $8 5 miion compared to a daficit of $22 0 millon as at 31 December 2012
The 2042 wnpact of recognming el nel actuarial gams and iossa was thai the tah daficd of $22 O mihon was recogrissd compaTed 1o the $23 B milhon asysl rscopnsed
under tha previous eccounting policy The man raasons for the decraase i Lhe deficit over 2013 wera

() & hagher than assumad vastmant rabarn Qver the period and
(b} tha defe i contnbubans thet have been peid nto the Funds over the penac perkatty cffset by
(=) i iNcredss n e assurmed future inflation wiwch mcrsasad the assessed vaks of the inflabon-inked berelis from the Fund

The assats of the scheme were a3 folows:

[GROUF &ND BANK 2043 2012
Value Vetue|

$000
Equoes 130104 109 784
Bords 49 23620
Cash BTN 210952
Othwr 1355 156¢
Total markel value of assets 184 501 158 805

Tha charge racodnised in the ncoms staterrent i a3 likws

GROUP AND BANK 2013 2012
$000 3000
Restated
Nel interast an net defined Labity &70 58%
Actual running costs 410 13
Clamant sarvice COst 5t
1,250 953

The actual rabums on plan assats wera $22 392 000 (2012 $15 ¥52 000).

Poncpel Actwanat Assamptony
ity ;2
Fubure pgrepon ncressss 3IZ%pa 29% pa
Diacount rate 4 Thpa 4AT%pa
Postatremesnt morality SINA_UTZCMITI(1 D%K03) SANA_KZCMI11{1 O%K03)

The most recerd acluanal vatuation ma st 1 Juy 2012 showed #30eta of $140 3 million reduced by techmcal provisona of $135 1 miien, giving & ret deficit of
347 B milon, The daficit coniributions were agresd at $50% (00 par manth urtl June 2020

Sanatvdy of obligations o altarnatve assurmptions 2013
$000
Discour rats
Effect on defined banafil obligaton of a 0 1% decreass 3827
Inflaton
Effect or gefined banefi cbiigation of a 0 1% increase
{RPI LCI panson sereass and CPI) 1318
Elfect on definad benefi otigaton of 4 GPI deducton of § #% below RPI 989
Lie sxpeciancy
EMect on defined beneft obligabon of members Vg 1 yesr longer 5 440

Tha duration of fiabilbes = ostxnated 0 be 22 yers

The assets of the pension scheme are bk in separate Tustes sdminkstered funds. The trustee board regularly reviews the Investment strategy

with tha aim of meatng beneft payments as they falf due and he o bival subjact 1o a0 appropriats level of
risk. These beoad principles have led 10 the Investment Kirategy below  There is no exact matching of avsets snd Kzbdites In the form ofinsurance
polices o derbratives

2013 213
Plar assats Loi) tefry sirategy Clunert siocaton
Egutes 70| 0%
Corporate Bonds. 15%) 15%
Gl 15% 14%|
Othar %) 1%

100% | 100%,

AHLIUNITED BANK {UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013
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26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
The movement in the farr value of plan assets dunng the year 1s as follows
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GROUP AND BANK 2013 2012
5000 3000
Restated
At1 January 156 805 132174
Exchange rate and other adustments 4312 © 688
161117 138 862
Actuarial gains on plan assets 14105 7 964
Interest on plan assets 7 206 7783
Contnbubons paid into the plan 6119 6193
Benefits pard {3535) (3 684)
Running costs (411) (313)
At 31 December 184 601 156 805
The movement in the present value of the scheme s obligatons dunng the year is as follows
GROUP AND BANK 2013 2012
s000 $000]
Restated
At 1 January 178 830 146 134
Exchanga rate adjustments 3950 8129
182780 154 263
Employer's part of current Senace Cost - 51
Interest on plan labilbes 3078 7732
Actuanal losses 5861 20 468
Benefits paid {3535) {3 684}
At 31 December 193184 178830
The movement in the iapility recognised in the Group balance sheet dunng the year 15 &s follows
GROUP AND BANK 2013 2012
$000 $000
Restated
At 1 January 22025 13 959
Exchange rate adjustments (359) 802
21666 14 761
Total expenses as above 1280 853
Centnbutons by the Group {6119) (6 193)
Actuarial ([gains) / losses B 244) 12 504/
At 31 December 8583 22025
The expected contnbution {6 the plan to be paid n the year ending 31 December 2013 s $6 2 million {2012 $6 3 milon)
The 2012 figures have been restated under lAS 19 (Revised 2011) for the prior year comparatve figures in the 2013 financal statements
The key wipact of the IAS 19 (Rewvised) are
{a) Removal of the expected return on assets and interest cost' components of the pension cost. Instead these are replaced by interest on net defined
benefit lataity on the balance sheet, calculated using the IAS 19 {Rewsed) drscount rate
{b) Remaval of the comdor cphion previousty used to smooth the impact of gains and losses through profit Removal of this smecthing makes the
balance sheet posibon equal to the 1AS 19 (Rewised 2014) surplus or deficit in the scheme and therefore mare volatle from year to year
{c) Under IAS 19(Rewsed 2011) 1t1s required to recognise the net actuanal gains and losses through other comprehensive income
{d) Running costs other than nvestment management expenses which have previously been accounted for as a deducton 1o the expected return on
on assets are instead reported as a separate cost
GROUP AND BANK 2013 2012 2011 2M9 2009
3000 $000 3000 $000 $000
Present value of scheme s obligations 193 184 178830 146 134 145396 148 $00
Fair value of plan assets {184 601} {156 805) (132 174) {127 300} 1112 561
Defict at the reporung date & 583 22025 13 960 18046 36 338

(1) Defined contributions plan

The Bark alse operates a defined contnbutian plan the costs of which are recognised in the period o which they relate

The contnbubon dunng the year amounted to 3544 000 (2012 $501 000}
The plan participants were the active employees of the Bank
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
&t 31 December 2013

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank anters inio ransachons with the parent widertakmg feflow

fellow 4 dirct

Dirsctors senior managamant and companes

which are controlled jointly controlled or significant influenced by such parbes in the ordinary course of business at amm s langth AB the loans and advances b reisted
losses

parties ara performing and free of any prowviann for loan

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

GROUP AND BANK

2012

Parent

undetaking
Notes

Fellow Direct Diractors and
Submdiaries and | Subsxdiarles and senior
Associates Joint Yentures | managemert

“ther related

3000

$000 3000 3000 3000

Imterast and fea Income
Interest and fes expanse {a}
Loans and advances to banks
Reversa repurchase agreemonts
Leans and advances o customers
Deposts frorm banka
Repurchase agreaments
‘Customner deposits (a)
‘Other Fabxliiay

Babiliies {a}

(843}
18657
15000

W w W

10
18 (41
9 {15 204)
19
20

(343}
43513 -

1 141_ Z 784
{4,329} {119)

{2 €04) (7 844 (1 414)
{1 160)

21

{1 506 380)

92
(13,040)

3380

11 nw-)

(a) The foilowing 1ransactions were related to a major sharasholdar of the parant undertaking

Interest and fee expenss
Customers deposits
Subordinated kabilities

(b)The folawing wera classified as falow and direct . and
Feliow subsidianes

Ahl United Bank X 5. C

Ahll Uruted Bank (Egypt} SAE

Tidelnk Invesimeants Limited

Fellow Associates

Ahli BankSAQG

UBK Pavate Equity Property
UBK Euro Property LP

Dwect subscharios
iBU Il Furd PLC
AUE Finance B v

3000

{1 577 650}

(13021}

{11 059)

2012

Fellow Dot
Subswhaney and | Subsidanes and »OTRGT

Notes

Jont Y management

T retatad

$000 $000 $000 5000

Lnderest meaime

Interest exparma

Loans and advances to banks
Raversa repurchase agraements
Loans and advances t© customers
Deposas from banks

Repurchase agreements
Customer depasits

Cther Gabilves

St Eabaiitios.

T86

{1 154}
726
21 132

[Io - EANS

10
17 (334)
] {231 024)
18
19 -

21 -

(184} - -
1,448 - -

T296 8 561
(113018 319} -

{2.343) (252}, (7 640}

(1176 348)

{12 22¢)

4,176

(10 942)

(a) The following transactions were related to a major

Interest & fea axpensa
Customers deposits
Subordinated Habilities

of the parent

3000

1158 840

12 198

{10 942)

Key management and personnel remuneration

013 2012

$000 $000

Short term employee benefita
Post ant benafits

12307
o7

1178

1,404

1,202

Details of Drectors remunerzborn are sof 0w i nota 8
These are no provisons or imepagment an the redated party batancas
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AHLIUNITED BANK (UK} PLC
at 31 Dacember 2013 REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENT 2013

31 CAPITAL ADEQUALCY
The pnmary obyectives of the Bank's ¢apital management policies are to ensure that the Bank complies with extemally imposed capital requirements and
that the Bank maintains sirong credit ratings and healthy capital ratros in order to support its business and to maxmise shareholders' value The Bank had
complied in ful throughout the year with all tts externally impased capital requirements

In order to maintar or adjust the capital structure The Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders or 1ssue capital secunties No
changes were made to the objectives, policies and processes from the pravious years

The Bank 13 subyect to captal requirements impased by the Pradential Regulatory Authonty (PRA) and as such must ensure that it has sufficent capital
as defined by the PRA to meet its requirements as set out by the PRA  These requrements have been met throughout the year

The surplus capital calculated in accordance wih PRA requirements 1s $46 3 million (2012 $60 8 million) over the Ingnidual Capital Guidance and Capital
Planning Buffer

The Group's ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments  The Group considers its capital to comprise its ardinary share czpital share prermium
accumulated retained eamings and other reserves  There have been no changes in what the Group considers to be capital since the previous perod
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APPENDIX TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AHL! UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
at 31 December 2013 REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

ADDITIONAL PILLAR Il DISCLOSURES - Unaudited

The major nsks associated with the Bank s and Group's businesses together with key nsk management olyectives and policies are detaled i note 28 to the
Financial Statements

There are no restnctions to the moverent of capital batwaen tha tegal entiies within the statutory accounting group

Capital resources
The called up share capital of the Bank is fulty paid  Pnncipat terms of the dated subordinated debt are detalled i note 21 to the Financial Statements

2013 2012
$000 $000
Core ber 1 capdal
Called up share capital 200,080 200080
Share premium account 128 128
Profit and loss account (venfied) 67839 78303
268,047 278 511
Upper ber 2 capital
Collective provision (restncted) 12,850 20430
12850 20 430
Lower ter 2 caprtal
Dated subordinated debt (amortised) 11,891 13 146
11,991 13146
Deductions from total capital {1422} (1 595}
{1,422) {1 595}
Net available capital 291,466 310,492

Capital requirements

The Bank monitors the adequacy of its capital to suppart current activities at least monthly aganst hvils which are the equivatent 1o an additional 4% cver the
capial requrement imposed on the Bank by the FSA  When the actual ratio 15 close to this mit the capital requrement 18 calculated on a dally basis
Addiionally detalled capital adequacy calculations are camed out as part of the budget process with frequently updated forecasts being produced throughbout
the year Detaled analysis 1s camed out in order to assess the )mpact on capital resource requirements of all new products

2013 2012
$000 $000
Credit nsk capital requirement (Standardised approach)

Centrai governments or eentral banks 2208 2790
Muitlateral devefopment banks - -
Institubions 6019 6239
Corporates 16,222 19774
Secured on real estate property 3174 34 203
Secured on commerctal real estate property 28,542 21 854
Past due tems 2,729 1,647
ltems belonging to regulatory lugh nsk categones 5431 6078
Short term claims on instituions and corporates 24,693 18 557
Other items 2,086 3378
121101 114 520

Market nsk capital requerement ( Standardised approach)
Interest rate PRR 256 5 765
Foresgn curency PRR 948 932
Counterparty nsk capital component 06 475
1,510 7172
Operatonal nek eapital requrement (Basic indicator approach) 10,511 9536
10,511 8 536
[Totat captal requiremnent 112 131228

The Bank calculates is credit nsk wetghted exposure amounts in accordance with the standardised approach The Bank uses extemal credit assessments
provided by Moody's to determine the nsk wetght of rated counterparties n certain standardised credit nsk exposure classes The external rating 1s mapped to
the prescnbed quality assessment scale that in tum produces standard nsk weightings The standardised credit nsk exposure classes for which such extemal
ratings are used are Central govemments or central banks Institutions Corporates, and Short term claims on instiutions and corporates
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APPENDIX TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
at 31 December 2013

ADDITIONAL PILLAR Il DISCLOSURES (continued) - Unaudited

AHLI UNITED BANK (UK) PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

Exposure vaiues both before and after credit nsk miygation {CRM) for each credit quality step prescnbed by the PRA are as follows
2013 Credit Quality Risk Exposure
Step Weight Expasure {after CRM)
% 3000 $000
Central governments or central banks
1 - 448 234 448 234
3 50 30876 30 876
Unrated 100 1211% 12119
491 229 491 229
Multilateral develcpment banks
1 - 182078 182078
182,078 182 078
nstitutions
1 20 40 868 40 868
2 50 127 782 127 752
3 50 € 376 6376
174 898 174 996
Corporates
1 20 30781 30 781
2 50 10076 10,076
3 100 134 028 134 028
4 100 9 8E8 9 966
Unrated 100 66 646 47 590
25% 457 232 441
Short term claims on insbitubons and corporates
Institutions 1 20 680 287 680 287
2 20 765754 765 754
3 20 16 915 16 915
Unrated 20 20 261 20 261
Corporates Unrated 100 12018 12014
1495 236 1485 231
2012 Credit Quakty Risk] Exposure
Step Weight Expasure {after CRM)
% $000 $000
Central govemnments or central banks
1 - 157 364 157 364
3 50 25663 25 663
5 100 13334 13394
Unrated 100 8645 8 649
205070 205 070
Institutions
1 20 29 442 29 442
2 50 125,284 125284
3 50 97N 073
3 100 4 592 4592
168 048 169 048
Corporates
1 20 35903 35903
2 50 18 402 17 886
3 100 120,928 120 928
4 100 4912 4912
6 130 25 636 25 636
Unrated 100 §5 584 66 756
301375 272,021
Short term claims on Institutions and corporates
Institutions. 1 20 384 017 384 017
2 20 413,997 413 997
3 20 232 065 232055
Corporates Unrated 100 25949 25 949
1086 018 1056018




APPENDLX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2t 31 Dacember 2013

ADDITIONAL PILLAR 11l DISCLOSURES {(continued) - Unaudited

Counterparty credit nsk

AHLIUNITED BANK (UK} PLC
REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

The gross positive far value of denvatve contracts i3 dataled m nots 26 to the Financial Statements  Nao advantage s taken of netting agreements or ¢ollateral
agreements Tha Group has not gntered into any contracts wheraby it would be required to provide additional collateral given a downgrade in its credit rating

The measures for exposures valugs of denvative financial instruments under the Counterparty Credit Risk mark-tornarket method ara as foltows

2013 2012
$000 $000
Exchange rate contracts
for trading purposes 1,537 16 129
for hedging purposes 15,898 11,000
Interest rate contracts
for trading purpases 1467 1876
for hedging purposes 9,51 7590
Equity based contracts
« for hedging purposes - 2,604

The amounts after credit nsk weighting are included 1n note 25 to the Financial Statements

Credit nsk

Details regarding the Bank 5 mathedology in assigning credit Bmits and secunng collateral are detailed in note 26 to the Financal Statements
The bank rarely makes use of on and off-balance shest netting and where this 1s utilsed dataded analysis i1s camed outin order to ensure that the relevant PRA

cntena have been met

Total exposures (before credd nsk mitigation) by exposure class and by matunty together with average ameounts for the year are as follows

2013 Aftar Aher;
3 months 1 yaar
within but within but within After|
3 months 1 yaar 5 years 5 yoars TOTAL AVERAGE|
$000 $00C $000 $000 $000 $000,
Leans and advances 1o banks 1484222 - - - 1464,222 1190943
Reverse Repurchase agreaments 15 000 - - - 15 000 128 472
Denvative financial instruments 176 - 2802 2754 5832 35634
Loans and advances to customers 101 625 182055 777226 536 417 1597 323 1584 355
Investment secunties
Available-for-sale 140,302 286 862 539,423 G887 1,035 558 728 477
Investments in a joint venture - 3210 - 3,210 3210
Contngent liabilites 7% 12950 - A78 13,503 11 601
Coemmitmenis 7 003 99 262 70 282 15434 191 981 149 109
1728 403 584 330 1389 833 824054 4326 629 3831802
2012 ‘After Aftar
3 months 1 year
Within but within but within After
3 menths 1 year S years 5 years TOTAL AVERAGE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Loans and advances to banks 796,928 - - - 796 928 1244314
Reverse Repurchase agreements 231,132 - - - 231132 2189518
Denvatve financial instruments 1211 4 068 2007 4009 11295 20 658
Loans and advances to customers 69 592 85873 746031 707 894 1608 390 1,712 638
Investment securltas
Available-for-sale 18,971 855 681 177131 752083 655 240
hvestments in a joint ventura 81 - 81 81
Contingent liablliies 75 9633 - 465 10,177 12 286
Commitments 7322 62 480 33 294 16 658 119 765 142 284
1108 260 181,116 1337 313] $08 142 3530 851 4007057
The above exposures are analysed by geography and industry in note 26 to the Financial Statements
The ittal exposure value covered by eliqible financrat collateral by exposure class 15
2013 2012
$000 5000
Loans and advances to customers 16,910 29 149,
Contingent habdites 150 205
19060 29 354

The ehgible financial collateral 1s pancipally cash
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APPENDIX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AHLI UNTTED BANK [UK) PLC

at 31 Docember 2043 REPQRT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013

ADDITIONAL PILLAR IIl DISCLOSURES {continued}) - Unaudited

DOetarts of mpaired exposura iogather with telated provisions and past due {but not im; nosures anshysed raphy are
2013 PROVISION
GROSS, SPECIFIC NET CHARGE/
IMPAIRED| |PROVISIONS IMPAIRED {CREDIT})| PAST DUE
$000 3000 so00] $000 5000
Europs [excluding Unitad Kingdom) . 713 7 505
United Kingdom 28 01 {17,217) 10 804 (4 467) 93
United Statss of Amenca 52 52 -
Other - - 112
28 073 (17217 10 858 {3 754) T 70
2412 PROVISION
GROSS SPECIFIC NET CHARGE/
IMPAIRED| |PROVISIONS IMPAIRED) {CREDIT)| PAST DUE
$000 5060 000) $000] $000
Europe (excluding United Kingdom) (45) (45) {362m) 1,551
Uruted Kingdam M 174 (22,789) 11,375 (1807) 11049
Unrtad States of Amenca 62 . 62 - -
Othar - 252
34 236 (22 B4d) 11 392 (5 434) 12 852
Datails of mpaired exposure together with ralated provisions and past dus (but not impaired) exposures lysed by induslry are
2013 GROSS SPECIFIC NET| | PROVISION
IMPAIRED| |PROVISIONS IMPAIRED CHARGE PASTDUE
3000 5000 3000 5000! $000
Manutacturing -
Parsanal -
Real Estate 27 442 {17,134) 10 308 {4 463) Lo
Qther 631 (83) 548 715
28073 (17,217) 10 836 {3 754) 770
2012 GROSS SPECIFIC NET| | PROVISION
IMPAIRED| {PROVISIONS IMPAIRED CHARGE PAST DUE
$000 3000 000! $000 3000
Manufacturing - - (1,284) .
Personal a2 (101} (19) - -
Real Estate 154 (22,71%) 11 438 2970) 12852
Other - {27) (2n (1110) -
34,236 {22 B44) 11 292 (5,424) 12,852
Only those loans which have beon past due for more than D0 days sre treated as past dus for the purposss of calculatng the Banke mimimum capital
requirements and In the tabies above fi and it of iImp kians iogether with the methods adopted for determuung provisions  are detatled
n note 1 1o the Financial Statementy
Oparational Risk

The Bank has ndopted the Basic Indicator approach for cperational risk  Undar this approach the regulatary capital requirement for operational risk is calculated
by applying & ta-efficient of 15 per cant 1o the average gross inceme for the preceding threa financal years

Exposure to Interest rate sk in the non-trading book

Details of the nature of s nsk and of ds measirement by the Bank zre inchuded n note 26 to the Financial Siatements

Remuneration
The Bank a remuneration palicy 1s moorporated into its HR palicy which 1a raviewed by the Board of Directors and the Group Compensation Committes on an
annyal basis.

The iotal varlable amount avaitable I determined firslly by assessing the Banks profitabdity compared 1o budget. The employee s variable remunaraton is
based on the reaults of the annual performance appraisal process Tha process aasessaa the financal and nan (inancial attributes of the employees awarding
gradea which rasult in a foemula drven bonus  The resuling awards are then subject b a moderaton review by senior management befare being presented to
the Compensation Commties lor further revision and approval

Tha table below shawa the fixed and variable ramunarabon for code ataff basad on bonus payments pad dunng 2083

Flxed Vanabla Total Number of

$000 3000 $000 Code Staff|
Private banking & Wealth Management 3094 741 3839 18
Cotporyte Banking 173 439 2 169 10
Total 4,828 1180 6,008) 29
[Semor Mansgement 4828] | 1180] | s oog] | 2
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